
 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SPECIAL MEETING 

Wednesday, January 17, 2018 at 2:30PM Commissioners’ 
Hearing Room, Courthouse Annex 

94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon 
www.co.curry.or.us 

 

AGENDA 
Items may be taken out of sequence to accommodate staff availability and the public. 

For public comment, a completed speaker’s slip must be submitted. 
 

**** Please note – The Special Meeting begins at 2:30PM **** 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
  

2. de novo PUBLIC HEARING 
A de novo public hearing for Board review, public comment and Board action on an 
appeal of a Planning Commission decision to deny an Elk River Property 
Development, (land use application AD-1705) for the analysis of alternative routes 
for a pipeline and ancillary facilities to deliver recycled wastewater located for 
irrigation of a golf course. 

A. Identify and follow the hearing  procedure specified in Zoning Ordinance 
2.140(2a-d) 

B. Receive the staff report 
C. Accept testimony from parties in favor of the application 
D. Accept testimony from other parties 
E. Allow the parties to offer rebuttal evidence and testimony 
F. If requested by the Board, continue the hearing to a date certain no later than 

January 31, 2018. 
G. Conclude the hearing; the Board should determine whether to leave the record 

open.  
H. Deliberate among the Board of Commissioners and, if desired, direct questions 

to County staff. 
I. Discuss findings and direct staff to bring back a final order no later than 

January 31, 2018. 
 

3. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 

Curry County does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities and all public meetings are held in 
accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 48 hours advance notification. Please call 
541-247-3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 

 
 

http://www.co.curry.or.us/


CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 1-5-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: A de novo public hearing for Board review, 
public comment and Board  action on an appeal of a Planning Commission 
decision to deny an Elk River Property Development, (land use application AD-
1705) for the analysis of alternative routes for a pipeline and ancillary facilities to 
deliver recycled wastewater located for irrigation of a golf course on or over 
Assessor map 32-15-29C, lot numbers: 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 120 
and 121 and extending to the property commonly known as the Knapp Ranch. 
(Sections 19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 4400, and 
Section 29c of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 500) 
 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 
AGENDA DATEa:   January 17, 2018        DEPARTMENT:       Community Development 
TIME NEEDED:       1.5 hours 
(aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period)) 
 
MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☒  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Carolyn Johnson            PHONE/EXT:  3228         
TODAY’S DATE: January 5, 2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: See attached memo  
   
FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Staff report     
(2) Eleven Exhibits 
(3)       
 
    
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes ☐No ☒ 
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes ☐ No ☒ 
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  Does Agenda Item impact County personnel resources?    Yes  ☐ No  ☒ 
      (If Yes, brief detail)       
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
 ☐No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 ☒File with County Clerk     Name:          
 ☐Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 ☐Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

☐Other                   
         Phone:                 
cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  ☐No☐     N/A ☒    
Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  ☐ No  ☐    N/A☒ 
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:         Yes ☐ No  ☐  N/A☒ 
4. If hire order requires a Personnel Action Form (PAF)?             Pending  ☐ N/A ☒ No  ☐ HR ☐    
PART IV – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


☒ APPROVED FOR ____01/17/18____  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  ☒ No  ☐ 
  (If Yes, brief detail)  
ASSIGNED TO:  ORDER   
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA APPROVAL  
COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes ☐No  ☐ 
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  ☐ No  ☐ 
Commissioner Court Boice    Yes  ☐ No ☐      
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Board of Commissioners Staff Report 
 
Meeting Date:   January 17, 2018     
 
Prepared by:  Carolyn Johnson, Community Development Director 
 
Agenda Item.  A de novo public hearing for Board review, public comment and Board  
action on an appeal of a Planning Commission decision to deny an Elk River Property 
Development, (land use application AD-1705) for the analysis of alternative routes for a 
pipeline and ancillary facilities to deliver recycled wastewater located for irrigation of a golf 
course on or over Assessor map 32-15-29C, lot numbers: 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 
120 and 121 and extending to the property commonly known as the Knapp Ranch. (Sections 
19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 4400, and Section 29c of 
Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 500)  
 
Hearing Procedure:  
1. Identify and follow the hearing  procedure specified in Zoning Ordinance 2.140(2a-d) 
2. Receive the staff report 
3. Accept testimony from parties in favor of the application 
4. Accept testimony from other parties 
5. Allow the parties to offer rebuttal evidence and testimony 
6. If requested by the Board, continue the hearing to a date certain no later than January 
31, 2018. 
7. Conclude the hearing, the Board should determine whether to leave the record open.  
8. Deliberate among the Board of Commissioners and, if desired, direct questions to 
County staff. 
9. Discuss findings and direct staff to bring back a final order no later than January 31, 
2018. 
 
Proposed Board Options:  
 
1) Reach a decision to uphold the Appeal.  Direct staff to prepare a Board Final Order for 
action on January 31, 2018.  
 
2) Reach a decision to deny the appeal and direct staff to prepare a Board Final Order 
for action on January 31, 2018.  
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Staff recommendations:  
 
1. Accept Oral report from staff, hear testimony from parties with standing and the 
public, close the public hearing and deliberate.  
  
2. Reach a decision to uphold the Appeal.  Direct staff to prepare a Board Final Order 
for action on January 31, 2018.  
   
3. If the January 17, 2017 de novo public hearing includes additional public suggested 
alternatives, with sufficient specificity to merit written response from the applicant (as per 
ORS 215.246), then the public hearing should be closed but the record remain open for 
written responses by the applicant and review by the Board at a future date but no later 
than January 31, 2018.    
 
I. Application Information: 
 
Applicant/Agent: Elk River Development Corporation LLC (ERCD)/Bill Kloos Esq. 

 
Zoning: Exclusive Farm Use (EFU)  
 
Project Description/Location: ERCD seeks to extend a recycled wastewater pipeline and 
ancillary facilities 1 outside the Port Orford city limits to the future Pacific Gales golf 
course. 2 The two pipeline routes under consideration can generally be described as: 
 
1) Running north along Arizona Street and thence west and north across land owned by 
Knapp Ranches Inc,; and  
 
2) Running north along Madrona Ave, until travelling west (partially through private 
property, with the landowners permission) to land owned by Knapp Ranches.  
 
The proposed alternative routes are noted on Attachment 2 and the following page of this 
report.  
  

                                                 
1 A pond that will store water, pumps and a small pumphouse that will shelter the irrigation equipment.  
2 Board Order 20255 (In the Matter of Remand Proceedings for Application AD-1411) and affirmed by LUBA opinion Or LUBA 2015-080, 
January 27, 2016. 
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II.      Background:  In January of 2015, the Board of Commissioners approved a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP-1411) for the Pacific Gales Golf Course located in an 
Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) zoning district. The applicant seeks to extend a recycled 
wastewater pipeline to the golf course site for irrigation. The Zoning Ordinance is silent on a 
definition of recycled and/or reclaimed water3 permitting requirements. However Oregon 
State Statute (ORS) 215.283(1)(v) notes that subject to a license or permit4 by the 
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), recycled water for irrigation is a permitted use 
in an EFU zone.  Prior to issuance of the subject permits, ORS 215.2465 notes that DEQ 
requires an applicant to identify alternatives through a local government process for the 
recycled wastewater pipeline location. After the local government process of reviewing 
alternatives is complete, DEQ will complete processing of  the necessary DEQ permits for 
the applicant to proceed with the project.  The County’s Zoning Ordinance6 identifies the 
Planning Commission as the County’s decision maker to analyze these alternatives.  
 
ERCD made an application (AD-1705) for Planning Commission review of the alternative 
routes for the pipeline. The Planning Commission reviewed the application on September 
21 and October 19, and denied the application on November 7, 2017.  Attachment 11 
provides additional information on the Planning Commission process.  Planning 
Commission decisions can be appealed to the Board of Commissioners. ERCD appealed 
                                                 
3 The proposed pipeline would transport reclaimed water meeting the ORS 537.131 criteria as described in the July 27, 2017 memo from 
County Counsel. (Attachment  9)   Reclaimed water is referred to as recycled water by DEQ.    
4 The applicant has submitted applications to DEQ for a Wastewater Pollution Control Facility Permit and a Recycled Water Use Permit 
5 ORS 215.246 -Approval of land application of certain substances; subsequent use of tract of land; consideration of alternatives 
6 2.060(2)(d) Article II. Procedures for Making Land Use Decisions 
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the Planning Commission’s application denial to the Board pursuant to Zoning Ordinance 
Section 2.170 (Appeal of a land use decision) which states:  
 
“Appeals of the decision making body shall take up the appeal as a de novo  issue  and the  
final  written  order  or  conclusions  of  the  lower  decision  making  body being appealed 
shall not be considered in the appellate review.”  
 
In this case, the “decision making body” is the Board of Commissioners. “De Novo”  means 
the Board is to review the ERCD application without giving deference to the Planning 
Commission’s denial. “Lower decision making body” means the Planning Commission. 
“Appellate review” means review by the Board of Commissioners.  
 
 III. Applicable Criteria and Discussion  
 
Curry County procedure to review the proposal 
 
A. CCZO  Section 2.060(2)(d) identifies the Planning Commission as the decision making 
body for subdivisions, interpretations of Planning Director decisions and “other land use 
actions”.  
 
Consistent with CCZO Section 2.060(2)(d), the Planning Commission acted as the decision 
making body for Application AD-1705.  
 
B. CCZO Section 2.170 (1) and (7) – Appeal of a Land Use Decision  
 
1. In the matter of all appeals, the decision making body shall take up the appeal as a 
de  novo  issue  and  the  final  written  order  or  conclusions  of  the  lower  decision  
making  body being appealed shall not be considered in the appellate review 
 
7.  Requires the notice of appeal to include a statement demonstrating that the appeal 
issues were raised during the public comment period. 
 
Discussion:  The Planning Commission’s November 7, 2017 decision was appealed. The 
Final Order was released on November 8, 2017. An appeal of the Planning Commission’s 
decision, (Attachment 5a) from the applicant’s representative Bill Kloos was received on 
November 10, 2017. The Planning Commission revisited and approved an expanded Final 
Order on December 14, 2017.  An appeal to the second Final Order Planning Commission 
decision, (Attachment 5a) was received on December 20, 2017.  
Consistent with CCZO Section 2.170 (1), the Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 
hearing is procedurally being held as a de novo hearing for the Planning Commission’s two 
Final Orders. The Board of Commissioners is to review Application AD-1705 without giving 
deference to the Planning Commission’s actions as further described in a November 27, 
2017 memo from County Counsel (Attachment 9):  
 
“The Board considers this review “de novo”. That means this is a new hearing and the 
Board is not bound by, and cannot give any deference or weight to, the Planning 
Commission’s work or decision.  Nevertheless, that material is part of the record for the 
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Board’s review.  CCZO Section 2.170 (1) states: In the matter of all appeals, the decision 
making body shall take up the appeal as a de  novo  issue  and  the  final  written  order  or  
conclusions  of  the  lower  decision  making  body being appealed shall not be considered 
in the appellate review.” 
 
Consistent with CCZO Section 2.170 (7), The Notice of the Appeal (Attachment 4) included 
arguments and evidence raised during the public comment period.  
 
C. CCZO Section 2.172(6) – Land Use Appeal Procedures 
 
6. The  decision  making  body  shall render a  decision,  may  affirm,  reverse  or  
modify  the action of a lesser authority and may reasonably attach conditions necessary to 
carry out the Comprehensive Plan…  
 
Consistent with CCZO Section 2.172(6), the Curry County Board of Commissioners is to 
render a decision regarding application AD-1705.   
 
Oregon statutes regarding the proposal 
 
D. ORS 215.246(1a) and (3)  
 
(1) The uses allowed under ORS 215.213 … (a) Require a determination by the 
Department of Environmental Quality, in conjunction with the department’s review of a 
license, permit or approval, that the application rates and site management practices for the 
land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids 
ensure continued agricultural, horticultural or silvicultural production and do not reduce the 
productivity of the tract. 
 
(3) When a state agency or a local government makes a land use decision relating to the 
land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosoils under 
a license, permit or approval by the DEQ, the applicant shall explain in writing how 
alternatives identified in public comments on the land use decision were considered, and if 
the alternatives are not used, explain in writing the reasons for not using the alternatives. 
The applicant must consider only those alternatives that are identified with sufficient 
specificity to afford the applicant an adequate opportunity to consider the alternatives. A 
land use decision relating to the land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or 
industrial process water or biosoils may not be reversed or remanded under this subsection 
unless the applicant failed to consider identified alternatives or to explain in writing the 
reasons for not using the alternatives. 
 
ORS 215.246(1) requires the DEQ permit process to include “application rates and site 
management practices for the land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial 
process water or biosolids ensure continued agricultural, horticultural or silvicultural 
production and do not reduce the productivity of the tract.”  Accordingly, the applicant is 
required to meet ORS 215.246(1) requirements as a part of the DEQ processing of their 

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/215.213
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Recycled Water Use Permit.  The applicant has submitted an application for the DEQ 
permit; however the permit will not be issued until the County review process is completed.  
 
If the Board authorizes the subject proposal, AD-1705 Condition of Approval #1 is a 
requirement to meet the standards of ORS 215.246(1a). Condition of Approval 1 states:  
“Receive approval from the Oregon State Department of Environmental Quality for a  
Recycled Water Use Permit for the proposed use prior to pipeline construction.”   
 
ORS 215.246(3) requires an applicant to explain how public comments on the alternatives 
have been addressed and explain reasons for not using any identified (and adequately 
detailed) alternatives.   
 
After the public hearing, if the Board of Commissioners finds that the applicant has 
adequately  considered public comment related to identified alternatives, then the applicant 
has statisfied this statutory requirement. Public comments, and the applicants responses to 
those comments, have been received at the writing of this report (see Attachments 5 and 
10)  If public comments are received as a result of this hearing, which introduce new 
evidence related to identified alternatives, then the applicant must be granted an 
opportunity to evaluate them.  
 
E.  ORS 215.246(4)(a):  The uses allowed under this section include: The treatment of 
reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids that occurs as a result 
of the land application; 
 
The project includes the treatment of reclaimed water consistent with ORS section 
215.246(4)(a) by use of a pond to expose the reclaimed water to natural soil microbes that 
will digest a trace amount of nutrients and other substances.   
  
It is the applicant’s position that natural processes will lead to continued improvements in 
water quality such as exposure to UV light while the water is impounded in a pond at the 
golf course.   
 
As stated in the proposal application, all water quality treatments will occur at existing Port 
Orford sewage treatment plant. Some degree of water quality improvement is expected to 
occur incidentally to storing the recycled water in the pond, and its application  to the golf 
course, where it will be exposed to soil microbes and other natural processes. Water 
currently being discharged from sewage treatment plant is already treated to such a high 
level that it is permitted to be discharged directly into the ocean. The applicant has stated 
that it is more environmentally sustainable to use the City’s effluent for irrigation, (where 
any trace containments will be broken down by exposure to air and UV light during the 
pond storage period, and by soil microbes after it is applied as irrigation), as opposed to 
discharging it directly into the marine environment.  
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F. ORS 215.246(4)(b)  The establishment and use of facilities, including buildings, 
equipment, aerated and nonaerated water impoundments, pumps and other irrigation 
equipment, that are accessory to and reasonably necessary for the land application to 
occur on the subject tract; 
 
ERCD has proposed improvements that will include a portion of the pipe that delivers 
treated water, a pond that will store water, pumps and irrigation equpiment, and  a small 
pumphouse that will shelter the irrigation equipment.  Consistent with ORS 215.246(4)(b), 
the project includes improvements that will be reasonably necessary for the use of recycled 
wastewater for irrigation on the Pacific Gales golf course. 
 
G. ORS 215.246(4)(c)  The Establishment and use of facilities, including buildings and 
equipment, that are not on the tract on which the land application occurs for the transport of 
reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosoils to the tract on which the 
land application occurs if the facilities are located within: (A) a public right of way; or (B) 
Other land if the landowner provides written consent and the owner of the facility complies 
with ORS 215.275(4); and (d) the transport by vehicle of reclaimed water on which the 
water will be applied. 
 
ERDC proposes ancillary facilities necessary for the use of recycled wastewater on lands 
outside of the tract where irrigation will occur, primarily in the right of way. In limited 
instances where pipeline is to cross land that is not within right of way, written consent from 
land owners is required to cross property for the project. ERCD has secured the referenced 
written consent.  (Attachment 6)   
 
H. ORS 215.283(1)(v): (1) The following uses may be established in any area zoned for 
exclusive farm use: (v) Subject to the issuance of a license, permit or other approval by the 
Department of Environmental Quality under ORS 454.695… 459.205…468B.050… 
468B.053…468B.055…468B.095… the land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or 
industrial process water or biosolids for agricultural, horticultural or silvicultural production, 
or for irrigation in connection with a use allowed in an exclusive farm use zone under this 
chapter.” 
 
Oregon Statute requires the land application of reclaimed water to have a license, permit, 
or other approval from DEQ.  DEQ has indicated the processing of the Recycled Water Use 
Permit for the project cannot be completed without the County’s review and authorization of 
the Alternatives analysis, the subject of this staff report.   
 
IV. Conclusion 
 
Related to ORS 215.283 
The proposed recycled water pipeline and it’s ancillary features for irrigation in an EFU 
zone appears consistent with ORS 215.283. Reclaimed water can used for irrigation related 
to an allowed use in the EFU zone. County Counsel notes in his October 11, 2017 memo 
(Attachment 9) that it is his opinion that a valid existing CUP for a golf course is not 
required for the County to authorize AD-1705.   
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The irrigation use in this case is proposed for use on the  Pacific Gales golf course. The 
Board of Commissioners approved a Conditional Use Permit for the golf course project and 
the Land Use Board of Appeals affirmed the approval in 2016.7 The applicant’s 
representative has provided evidence that the Conditional Use Permit has been initiated 
and is therefore valid. (Page 10 of Attachment 5) 
 
ORS 215.283(v) specifies  DEQ’s approval of a Wastewater Control Facility Permit and a 
Recycled Water Use Permit to satisfy ORS 215.246. DEQ8 has identified the steps (Page 2 
of Attachment 1) required for the applicant to secure the required DEQ permits:  
 
1)  The applicant obtains the required DEQ application and Land Use Compatibility 
Statement (LUCS) form to the County Planning Office for review and approval.  
 
2) The County conducts its land use review process. Pertinent to this step, Board 
approval of the proposal would include the following Condition #1:  Receive approval from 
the Oregon State Department of Environmental Quality for a Wastewater Pollution Control 
Facility Permit and a Recycled Water Use Permit for the proposed use prior to pipeline 
construction 
 
3) The County completes the LUCS form and returns it to the applicant with appropriate 
findings. 
 
4) The applicant submits the DEQ application and approved LUCS for processing. 
 
The balance of the requirements to secure the required are required by Oregon State DEQ.   
The applicant has submitted the LUCS Statement to the Community Development 
Department/Planning division. Following a Board action to authorize the subject application, 
the LUCS will be completed and returned to the applicant for their submittal of the required 
permits to DEQ for the proposal.   
 
Further information can be found in the October 24, 2017 County Counsel memo 
(Attachment 9).  
 
Related to ORS 215.246 (1), (3), and (4c)  
The applicant is required to meet ORS 215.246(1) requirements as a part of the DEQ 
processing of a Recycled Water Use Permit. AD-1705 Condition of Approval #1 specifies 
said compliance as follows: Receive approval from the Oregon State Department of 
Environmental Quality for a Wastewater Pollution Control Facility Permit and a Recycled 
Water Use Permit for the proposed use prior to pipeline construction.   
 
 

                                                 
7 Board Order 20255 and LUBA Opinion Or LUBA 2015-080 
8 November 21, 2017 e-mail from by Ranei Nomura, Manager, Water Quality Permitting and Compliance DEQ Western Region to Jacob 
Callister, LCOG contract planner 
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ORS 215.246(3) requires an applicant to explain how public comments on the alternatives 
have been addressed and explain reasons for not using any identified (and adequately 
detailed) alternatives.  The applicant has met the requirements specified in ORS 215.246 
and (3)  by  specifying how alternatives identified in public comments on the land use 
decision were considered, and the reasons for not using the alternatives. 
 
Related to ORS 215.246(4)(a)  
The project includes the treatment of reclaimed water consistent with ORS 215.246(4)(a) 
by use of a pond to expose the reclaimed water to natural soil microbes that will digest a 
trace amount of nutrients and other substances. 
 
Related to ORS 215.246(4)(b) 
The project includes improvements that will be reasonably necessary for the use of 
recycled wastewater for irrigation on the Pacific Gales golf course. 
 
Related to ORS 215.246(4c)  
For both the preferred and alternate routes, the applicant has obtained easements with 
land owners where the pipeline can pass through private property. 
 
V.  Public Comments9  - Public comments can be found on Attachment 10 and include:    
• October 18, 2017 Transmittal from the Oregon Coastal Alliance (ORCA)   
• September 5 and December 14, 2017 letter from Beverly Walters 
• December 20, 2017 letter from Jim Auborn  
• December 14, 2017 letter from the Karen Jennings representing the Port Orford 
Main Street Revitalization Program  
• December 14, 2017 letter from Karen Auborn  
 
Attachments 
1 – Electronic transmittal regarding DEQ permitting process.  
2 -  Proposed preferred and alternative routes of pipeline.  
3 – Detailed decription of alternatives (including routes and plans)  
4 – Public notice for BOC January 17, 2018 public hearing   
5 – Applicant’s written statements 
5a – Applicant’s November 10 and December 14 appeals 
6 – Easement agreements and written consent of property owners for use of property for 
pipeline 
7 – Application to County  
8 - November 8, 2017 and December 14, 2017 Planning Commission Final Orders 
9 -  July, October 11, October 24 and November 27 County Counsel memos 
9a – November 7, 2107 Planning Commission meeting transcript 
10 - Public comments   
11- Planning Commission denial process 
 
 

                                                 
9 Received by 5 PM, January 3 for inclusion in the Board 01.17.2018 de novo hearing packet.  



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  PUBLIC HEARING PUBLIC NOTICE   
 
Notice is hereby given that the Curry County Board of Commissioners (Board) 
will hold a special de novo public hearing on Wednesday, January 17, 2018 at 
2:30 PM in the Commissioners’ Hearing Room at the Curry County Courthouse 
Annex Building located at 94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon pursuant 
to ORS 197.763(2)(a) and Curry County Zoning Ordinance 2.070(1).  The 
hearing purpose is for Board review, public comment and Board action on an 
appeal of a Planning Commission decision to deny an Elk River Property 
Development application (submitted  pursuant to ORS 215.246) for the 
analysis of alternatives routes for a pipeline and ancillary facilities to deliver 
recycled wastewater located for irrigation of a golf course on or over Assessor 
map 32-15-29C, lot numbers: 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 120 and 121. 
The proposed alternatives are primarily within Curry County and Oregon 
Department of Transportation public rights of way leaving the northerly Port 
Orford urban growth boundary and extending to the a golf course development 
site located on the property commonly known as the Knapp Ranch. (Sections 
19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 4400, and Section 
29c of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 500)   
 
State your comments to the Board at the public hearing and/or submit your 
comments for the record by e-mail to johnsonc@co.curry.or.us (with A-1701 in 
the subject line) or United States Postal Service to the Curry County 
Community Development Department, Curry County Annex, 94235 Moore St, 
Suite 113 Gold Beach, OR 97444, Attention: Carolyn Johnson. For  written 
comments to be included in the Board packet, they must be received by 3 PM 
on Wednesday, January 3, 2018.  Written comments received after that time 
will be presented for the record at the Board’s January 17, 2018 public 
hearing.  A copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied upon by 
the applicant and applicable criteria are available now for viewing and 
download at no cost at: www.co.curry.or.us/departments/Community-
Development/Planning-Commission  and are located at 94235 Moore St, Suite 
113 Gold Beach Oregon for purchase at reasonable cost. The Board of 
Commissioners staff report will be available after 5 p.m. on Friday, January 5, 
2018 at http://www.co.curry.or.us/Board-of-Commissioners. 
 
Should the action of the Board  be appealed, the appeal shall be limited to the 
application materials, evidence and other documentation, and specific issues 
raised in the comments by interested parties leading up to the Board's 
action.  Failure to provide sufficient specificity to afford the Board an 
opportunity to respond to an issue that is raised precludes appeal to Oregon 
Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.     
 

mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us
http://www.co.curry.or.us/departments/Community-Development/Planning-Commission
http://www.co.curry.or.us/departments/Community-Development/Planning-Commission
http://www.co.curry.or.us/Board-of-Commissioners


 
 
From: CALLISTER Jacob (LCOG) [mailto:jcallister@lcog.org]  
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2017 8:37 AM 
To: Carolyn Johnson 
Cc: John Huttl 
Subject: FW: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight -- request for quick DLCD insights 
 
FYI… 
 
From: NOMURA Ranei [mailto:RANEI.NOMURA@state.or.us]  
Sent: Tuesday, November 21, 2017 2:21 PM 
To: CALLISTER Jacob (LCOG) 
Cc: HEARLEY Henry O 
Subject: RE: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight -- request for quick DLCD insights 
 
Jacob, 
 
Diane Baird with the Oregon Department of Justice was not available to review the documents from 
Curry County I received from Mr. Klingensmith before the due date. 
 
I think I understand your chicken and egg question but please see p. 16 of the Report to the Legislature: 
Implementation of Senate Bill 212, A Joint Report of the Department of Environmental Quality, 
Department of Land Conservation and Development, Department of Agriculture, and Health Services of 
the Department of Human Services at 
https://digital.osl.state.or.us/islandora/object/osl%3A21123/datastream/OBJ/view . 
 
I’ve excerpted the process in this report laid out by DEQ, DLCD, ODA, and OHS below. Please let me 
know if you have any additional questions. 
 
Ranei 
 
 
Ranei	Nomura	
Manager	
Water	Quality	Permitting	and	Compliance	
DEQ	Western	Region	
503‐378‐5081	
 
 
 



 
 
 
From: CALLISTER Jacob (LCOG) [mailto:jcallister@lcog.org]  
Sent: Sunday, November 19, 2017 5:53 PM 
To: NOMURA Ranei <ranei.nomura@state.or.us> 
Cc: HEARLEY Henry O <HHEARLEY@Lcog.org> 
Subject: Re: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight ‐‐ request for quick DLCD insights 

 
Hello Ranei, 
 
My name is Jacob Callister. I work for the Lane Council of Governments in Eugene Oregon and 
am the contract planner working on Elk River Development's application for the application 
of reclaimed wastewater on a golf course in Curry County.  



 
I am responsible for providing a recommendation to the County Board of Commissioners on the 
application.  
The Curry County Planning Commission denied the application partly because of sequencing 
related to the required DEQ “determination” outlined at ORS 215.246(a):  
The uses allowed under ORS 215.213 (Uses permitted in exclusive farm use zones in counties 
that adopted marginal lands system prior to 1993) (1)(y) and 215.283 (Uses permitted in 
exclusive farm use zones in nonmarginal lands counties) (1)(v): 
(a) Require a determination by the Department of Environmental Quality, in conjunction with 
the department’s review of a license, permit or approval, that the application rates and site 
management practices for the land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial 
process water or biosolids ensure continued agricultural, horticultural or silvicultural 
production and do not reduce the productivity of the tract. 
 
My question essentially echoes the others in the correspondence below. I really need to know if 
approval of the permits that Elk River has pursued with DEQ will objectively satisfy ORS 
215.246(a). This is because we are adding DEQ approval of the permits as a "Condition of 
Approval" for the application. In order to do that, we need to know that the DEQ permit 
approvals represent an objective satisfaction of ORS 215.246(a). We will have a chicken and egg 
issue if we cannot figure this out (both permits needing to be approved before the other).  
I am out of the office starting tomorrow, but I will be checking email and have a colleague at 
Lane Council of Governments, Henry Hearley, who is helping move things along in my absence 
(He is cc'd to this email). If you or Dianne Baird could get in touch with some insights, this 
would be extremely helpful for our next steps --  
  
There is a Curry County Board of Commissioners meeting on December 6th to review this matter. The 
staff report for the hearing is due a week prior (November 29th). We are hoping to have some direction on 
this in order to appropriately address DEQ's statutory requirement related to this application. 
 
Please let me know what else I can provide or do to get some clarity.   
 
Thanks Ranei, 
 
Jacob Callister 
Senior Planner 
Lane Council of Governments 
541‐682‐4114 
 

 
From: NOMURA Ranei <ranei.nomura@state.or.us> 
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 9:09 AM 
To: Nick Klingensmith 
Subject: Re: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight ‐‐ request for quick DLCD insights  
  
Let me check with Diane Baird to see if she is availabke to review. She is the DOJ assistant 
attorney general assigned to DEQ's water quality program and also has a background in Oregon 



land use law. I'll let you know what she thinks. 
 
 
 
Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ Original message ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Nick Klingensmith <nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com> 
Date: 9/28/17 8:35 AM (GMT‐08:00) 
To: NOMURA Ranei <ranei.nomura@state.or.us> 
Subject: RE: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight ‐‐ request for quick DLCD insights 
 
I understand. This situation is a little unique, however, as the local government Planning 
Commission isn’t applying any local standards in this decision – they are directly applying ORS 
215.246, which is statute that you and Bill Kloos and Larry Knudsen and I discussed on the 
phone a year ago. 
 
Because the county code doesn’t have any local regulations that implement this statute, the 
Planning Commissioners aren’t sure what to make of it. County staff has a good grasp of things, 
but the Planning Commissioners are a little confused by this task of applying standards directly 
from statute. 
 
Rather than weighing in on the substantive question of whether the application meets the 
approval criteria, we were merely hoping for some indication, from DEQ’s perspective, as to 
whether the local procedure that the county is providing is what the statute had in mind. We 
have already tried to explain to the Planning Commission that the county’s approach to this was 
developed with the input of DEQ and DLCD, but I get the impression that the Commission 
remains uncertain. 
 
If DEQ can’t comment at all, I understand. If there’s any more info I can provide, please let me 
know. Thanks very much, 
 
Nick Klingensmith 
Law Office of Bill Kloos, PC 
375 W. 4th Avenue, Suite 204 
Eugene, OR 97401 
Phone: (541) 912‐5280 
Fax: (541) 343‐8702 
e‐mail: nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com<mailto:nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com> 
Web www.LandUseOregon.com<http://www.landuseoregon.com/> 
 
Please do not read, copy or disseminate this communication unless you are the intended 
addressee. This e‐mail communication may contain confidential and/or privileged information 



intended only for the addressee. If you have received this e‐mail in error, please call 
immediately at the phone number above. Also, please notify me by e‐mail. Thank you. 
 
From: NOMURA Ranei [mailto:ranei.nomura@state.or.us] 
Sent: Wednesday, September 27, 2017 4:54 PM 
To: Nick Klingensmith <nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com> 
Subject: RE: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight ‐‐ request for quick DLCD insights 
 
Nick, 
 
DEQ does not get involved in the land use zoning process so we would not want to comment 
(or have any authority to comment) but I’ll take a quick look. If we do have any input unless, it 
would only be with respect to DEQ permitting requirements. 
 
Hope that makes sense. Thank you for your patience! 
 
Ranei 
 
 
Ranei Nomura 
Water Quality Program Manager 
DEQ Western Region 
503‐378‐5081 Salem Office 
503‐373‐7944 fax 
 
 
 
From: Nick Klingensmith [mailto:nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 26, 2017 9:04 AM 
To: NOMURA Ranei <ranei.nomura@state.or.us<mailto:ranei.nomura@state.or.us>> 
Subject: RE: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight ‐‐ request for quick DLCD insights 
 
Hi Ranei, I hope you had a great vacation. 
 
Yes, DEQ feedback would still be most welcome. The county hearing on this application was 
continued until October 19, and there likely will be an “open record” period of seven days 
following the close of the October hearing. If DEQ thought it was appropriate, your input on 
these questions of local procedure would not need to be extensive. When asked this same 
question, Dave Perry, the local DLCD rep, gave a the following succinct response: 
 
“The Statute requires that the County hold a hearing on the matter and the process outlined 
would meet the statutory requirement. We have no concerns regarding the County’s approach 
to this issue.” 
 



Of course, if DEQ wanted to say more, that is welcome also. 
 
Thanks again. 
 
Nick Klingensmith 
Law Office of Bill Kloos, PC 
375 W. 4th Avenue, Suite 204 
Eugene, OR 97401 
Phone: (541) 912‐5280 
Fax: (541) 343‐8702 
e‐mail: nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com<mailto:nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com> 
Web www.LandUseOregon.com<http://www.landuseoregon.com/> 
 
Please do not read, copy or disseminate this communication unless you are the intended 
addressee. This e‐mail communication may contain confidential and/or privileged information 
intended only for the addressee. If you have received this e‐mail in error, please call 
immediately at the phone number above. Also, please notify me by e‐mail. Thank you. 
 
From: NOMURA Ranei [mailto:ranei.nomura@state.or.us] 
Sent: Monday, September 25, 2017 9:46 PM 
To: Nick Klingensmith 
<nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com<mailto:nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com>> 
Subject: Re: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight ‐‐ request for quick DLCD insights 
 
Nick, 
 
I'm sorry I missed your request while I was on vacation. Do you still need DEQ feedback? If yes, 
by when? 
 
Ranei 
 
 
 
Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ Original message ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Nick Klingensmith 
<nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com><mailto:nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com%3e> 
Date: 9/21/17 5:56 PM (GMT‐08:00) 
To: NOMURA Ranei 
<NOMURA.Ranei@deq.state.or.us><mailto:NOMURA.Ranei@deq.state.or.us%3e> 
Cc: "Chris Hood (hoodc@stuntzner.com<mailto:hoodc@stuntzner.com>)" 
<hoodc@stuntzner.com><mailto:hoodc@stuntzner.com%3e>, "Jim Haley 



(jmhaley@aol.com<mailto:jmhaley@aol.com>)" 
<jmhaley@aol.com><mailto:jmhaley@aol.com%3e>, "Troy Russell 
(troyerussell@gmail.com<mailto:troyerussell@gmail.com>)" 
<troyerussell@gmail.com><mailto:troyerussell@gmail.com%3e>, "Carolyn Johnson 
(johnsonc@co.curry.or.us<mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us>)" 
<johnsonc@co.curry.or.us><mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us%3e>, John Huttl 
<huttlj@co.curry.or.us><mailto:huttlj@co.curry.or.us%3e> 
Subject: FW: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight ‐‐ request for quick DLCD insights 
 
Hello Ranei, 
 
A lot of time has passed since we last spoke on the subject of the reclaimed water for the 
Pacific Gales golf course, but tonight Curry County will be holding a hearing to get public 
comments on the proposal, in order to support the alternatives analysis called for in ORS 
215.246(3). 
 
A member of the Planning Commission asked county staff to get DLCD’s feedback as to whether 
we are procedurally on the right track. Earlier today, county staff suggested to me it would also 
be a good idea to ask for DEQ’s input on the matter. The email chain below started with the 
County’s contract planner, and was directed to Dave Perry, at DLCD. DLCD has responded 
favorably to our approach. 
 
I’ve attached the entire packet that will be submitted to the Planning Commission, including the 
application. It’s a big file, so I understand you might not have the bandwidth to review the 
whole thing. The first email in this chain does a great job of summarizing how the public 
process has been set up. 
 
I’m happy to answer any questions. Thanks very much for any feedback you can provide. 
 
 
Nick Klingensmith 
Law Office of Bill Kloos, PC 
375 W. 4th Avenue, Suite 204 
Eugene, OR 97401 
Phone: (541) 912‐5280 
Fax: (541) 343‐8702 
e‐mail: 
nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com<mailto:nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com><mailto:
nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com><mailto:nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com%3e> 
Web 
www.LandUseOregon.com<http://www.landuseoregon.com/><http://www.landuseoregon.co
m/%3e> 
 
Please do not read, copy or disseminate this communication unless you are the intended 



addressee. This e‐mail communication may contain confidential and/or privileged information 
intended only for the addressee. If you have received this e‐mail in error, please call 
immediately at the phone number above. Also, please notify me by e‐mail. Thank you. 
 
From: John Huttl [mailto:huttlj@co.curry.or.us] 
Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2017 10:08 AM 
To: Carolyn Johnson <johnsonc@co.curry.or.us><mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us%3e>; Nick 
Klingensmith 
<nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com><mailto:nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com%3e> 
Subject: RE: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight ‐‐ request for quick DLCD insights 
 
Nick 
You may want to share the below email with DEQ to ask them to review the county staff report 
(like DLCD did) to confirm the process the county is using meets the DEQ concerns. 
John 
 
From: Carolyn Johnson 
Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2017 10:01 AM 
To: Nick Klingensmith 
(nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com<mailto:nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com><mailto
:nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com><mailto:nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com%3e>) 
Cc: John Huttl 
Subject: FW: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight ‐‐ request for quick DLCD insights 
 
 
 
From: Perry, Dave [mailto:dave.perry@state.or.us] 
Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2017 9:51 AM 
To: 'CALLISTER Jacob (LCOG)' 
Cc: Carolyn Johnson 
Subject: RE: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight ‐‐ request for quick DLCD insights 
 
Jacob, 
 
The Statute requires that the County hold a hearing on the matter and the process outlined 
would meet the statutory requirement. We have no concerns regarding the County’s approach 
to this issue. 
 
[BeachBillLogo] 
 
David R. Perry | So. Coast Regional Representative 
Deptarment of Land Conservation and Development 
Ocean and Coastal Services Division 
810 SW Alder St., Ste. B | Newport, OR 97365 



Direct: (541) 574‐1584| Cell: (541) 270‐3279 
dave.perry@state.or.us<mailto:dave.perry@state.or.us><mailto:dave.perry@state.or.us><mail
to:dave.perry@state.or.us%3e> | 
www.oregon.gov/LCD<http://www.oregon.gov/LCD><http://www.oregon.gov/LCD%3e> 
 
 
 
From: CALLISTER Jacob (LCOG) [mailto:jcallister@lcog.org] 
Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2017 7:58 AM 
To: Perry, Dave 
<dperry@dlcd.state.or.us<mailto:dperry@dlcd.state.or.us><mailto:dperry@dlcd.state.or.us>><
mailto:dperry@dlcd.state.or.us%3e%3e> 
Cc: Carolyn Johnson 
(johnsonc@co.curry.or.us<mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us><mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us>
<mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us%3e>) 
<johnsonc@co.curry.or.us<mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us><mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us>
><mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us%3e%3e> 
Subject: Land use hearing in Curry County tonight ‐‐ request for quick DLCD insights 
Importance: High 
 
Hello Dave, 
 
My name is Jacob Callister. I am a Senior Planner with the Lane Council of Governments in 
Eugene, Oregon. 
Curry County reached out to us recently for support on a rather unique land use application. 
 
A property owner (Knapp Ranches), is proposing construction of a pipeline to carry recycled 
wastewater from the Port Orford Wastewater Treatment facility to a proposed Golf Course site 
north of the City (in the County). 
 
The use is permitted outright as per ORS 215.283(1)(v) , subject to standards provided in ORS 
215.246 (approval of land application of certain substances (including recycled wastewater)). 
 
ORS 215.246 (1) requires DEQ approval (a Recycled Water Use Permit) 
ORS 215.246 (2) addresses only changes to existing land application of recycled water (not 
applicable) 
ORS 215.246 (3) is the real substance of the process, It reads: 
 
(3) When a state agency or a local government makes a land use decision relating to the land 
application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids under a 
license, permit or approval by the Department of Environmental Quality, the applicant shall 
explain in writing how alternatives identified in public comments on the land use decision were 
considered and, if the alternatives are not used, explain in writing the reasons for not using the 
alternatives. The applicant must consider only those alternatives that are identified with 



sufficient specificity to afford the applicant an adequate opportunity to consider the 
alternatives. A land use decision relating to the land application of reclaimed water, agricultural 
or industrial process water or biosolids may not be reversed or remanded under this subsection 
unless the applicant failed to consider identified alternatives or to explain in writing the reasons 
for not using the alternatives. 
 
The County has determined to review the application with a quasi‐judicial process/hearing. 
Notice has been sent and published. There is a Planning Commission hearing tonight in Gold 
Beach. The County has provided an opportunity for the public to provide alternatives, and for 
the applicant to receive those (as per ORS 215.246(3)). 
 
It is our anticipation that the hearing will be closed, but that the record will remain open in 
order to, at a minimum, allow the applicant to provide adequate responses to the alternatives 
(as per ORS 215.246(3)). 
 
A Planning Commissioner expressed interest in what DLCD might think about this process. We 
thought it would be helpful if we have a response to this question ready at the hearing. In my 
experience, DLCD does concern itself directly with matters such as this. The site does have 
some history (including a LUBA remand LUBA‐2015‐080), and so we felt it most thorough to 
reach out. 
 
I have attached the application packet. I do not expect that you will have time to read it. I have 
summarized the key issue above. We would be interested in any reassurance or 
acknowledgement of your awareness of the process, or any concerns you have that we 
can/should consider this evening, and going forward. 
 
Thank you for your time, 
 
Jacob L.Callister 
Senior Planner 
Lane Council of Governments 
541‐682‐4114 

 
 



ATTACHMENT 2 
PROPOSED PREFERRED AND ALTERNATIVE ROUTES OF PIPELINE  



 



 
 
 



Attachment 3 – Detailed description of alternatives 
(including routes and plans)  

















































ATTACHMENT 4 
PUBLIC NOTICE FOR BOC JANUARY 17, 2018 PUBLIC HEARING 
INCLUDES 20 DAY NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNERS (4 PAGES) 

AND 
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE FOR NEWSPAPERS (1 PAGE) 











BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
PUBLIC HEARING PUBLIC NOTICE  

 
Notice is hereby given that the Curry County Board of Commissioners (Board) will hold a special de novo public 
hearing on Wednesday, January 17, 2018 at 2:30 PM in the Commissioners’ Hearing Room at the Curry County 
Courthouse Annex Building located at 94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon pursuant to ORS 197.763(2)(a) and 
Curry County Zoning Ordinance 2.070(1).  The hearing purpose is for Board review, public comment and Board  
action on an appeal of a Planning Commission decision to deny an Elk River Property Development application 
(submitted  pursuant to ORS 215.246) for the analysis of alternatives routes for a pipeline and ancillary facilities to 
deliver recycled wastewater located for irrigation of a golf course on or over Assessor map 32-15-29C, lot numbers: 
103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 120 and 121. The proposed alternatives are primarily within Curry County and 
Oregon Department of Transportation public rights of way leaving the northerly Port Orford urban growth boundary 
and extending to the a golf course development site located on the property commonly known as the Knapp Ranch. 
(Sections 19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 4400, and Section 29c of Township 32 S., 
Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 500)  
 
State your comments to the Board at the public hearing and/or submit your comments for the record by e-mail to 
johnsonc@co.curry.or.us (with A-1701 in the subject line) or United States Postal Service to the Curry County 
Community Development Department, Curry County Annex, 94235 Moore St, Suite 113 Gold Beach, OR 97444, 
Attention: Carolyn Johnson. For  written comments to be included in the Board packet, they must be received by 3 
PM on Wednesday, January 3, 2018.  Written comments received after that time will be presented for the record at 
the Board’s January 17, 2018 public hearing.  A copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied upon by 
the applicant and applicable criteria are available now for viewing and download at no cost at: 
www.co.curry.or.us/departments/Community-Development/Planning-Commission  and are located at 94235 Moore 
St, Suite 113 Gold Beach Oregon for purchase at reasonable cost. The Board of Commissioners staff report will be 
available after 5 p.m. on Friday, January 5, 2018 at http://www.co.curry.or.us/Board-of-Commissioners  
 
Should the action of the Board  be appealed, the appeal shall be limited to the application materials, evidence and 
other documentation, and specific issues raised in the comments by interested parties leading up to the Board's 
action.  Failure to provide sufficient specificity to afford the Board an opportunity to respond to an issue that is raised 
precludes appeal to Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.  
 

 





















LAW OFFICE OF BILL KLOOS, PC 
 
OREGON LAND USE LAW  

 
 

375 W. 4TH AVE, SUITE 204 
EUGENE, OR 97401 
TEL: (541) 912-5280 
FAX: (541) 343-8702 

E-MAIL: NKLINGENSMITH@LANDUSEOREGON.COM 
 

January 2, 2018 

Curry County Board of Directors  
94235 Moore Street, Suite 122 
Gold Beach, OR 97444 
 Submitted via email to: Carolyn Johnson at johnsonc@co.curry.or.us 
 
 Re:  AD-1705; permitholder’s testimony regarding initiation of development activity 
 
Dear Commissioners: 

This letter is submitted on behalf of Elk River Property Development, LLC.  It provides 
additional detail as to the development work that the permitholder has already performed, 
pursuant to the conditional use permit approval.  The relevant provision in the Curry County 
Zoning Ordinance requires that development work for this type of permit be initiated within a 
specific period of time, and this letter will show that development activities were initiated within 
that period.   

CCZO 7.050(4) governs discretionary decisions approving development on agricultural or forest 
land, and it requires development to be initiated within a prescribed time period.  Typically, this 
code provision provides two years for a permitholder to initiate development activity, but in this 
case, the CUP approval had a condition that gave the applicant only one year.  CCZO 7.050(4) 
provides, in relevant part: 

“A discretionary decision approving development on agricultural or forest outside 
an Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) is void two years from the date of the final 
decision if the development is not initiated in that period.” 

This letter contains photos, receipts, and banking records to show that development activity was 
initiated during the one-year period following the issuance of the CUP on January 15, 2015.  
“Development activity,” is defined by CCZO 1.030(34) as follows: 

“(34)  Development Activity. Any use or proposed use of land that requires 
disturbance of the vegetation or soils or which requires action of the Planning 
Division or Building Division to allow the construction or modification of structures 
or other improvements or to allow the division of the land.” 

The documentation included in this letter demonstrates that the permit holder has 
engaged in development activity, in a manner consistent with the activity authorized by 
the CUP.  This information includes: 

• Photos from March 3, 2015, showing heavy equipment (bulldozers, excavators, fuel 
trucks) performing the removal of invasive gorse on the golf course development site.  
Removal of invasive plants was an essential and required element of the original CUP 
approval.  These photos (along with the date-stamped emails) are included as exhibits A 
– F.   



• Equipment costs for the two bulldozers and two excavators that were used in performing 
this ground-clearing.  The heavy equipment is owned by the permitholder, but the 
equivalent rental costs can be used as a way to approximate the permitholder’s expense in 
the depreciation and wear-and-tear that this type of work places on the equipment.  These 
calculations are included as Exhibit G. 

• Checkbook register from Highland Golf Services Inc. (a company owned by members of 
Elk River Property Development, LLC) showing it paid $16,459.06 from the period of 
February, 2015 to June, 2015 for fuel and heavy equipment operator services provided by 
Jeff Knapp.  This record is included as Exhibit H. 

• An invoice from Bandon Well & Pump Co., showing the drilling of two wells on the 
property at a cost of $12,303.80.  These wells will likely be used for supplying the 
potable water to the golf course club house, pursuant to the original land use proposal, 
and pursuant to ORS 537.545(1)(f).  This invoice is included as Exhibit I.  
 

Collectively, this information shows that the permitholder has spent substantial sums of money 
and has initiated the development activity authorized by the CUP within the one-year period 
following the January 15, 2015 date that the CUP was issued.  Because the permitholder initiated 
this development activity within the required time period, the permit has not lapsed, and it is 
vested, under CCZO 7.050(4).  

Thank you for your attention to this issue.  If the Board has any questions about the development 
activities conducted on the development site, pursuant to the CUP approval, the permitholder 
looks forward to answering them.   

Sincerely, 

 

Nick Klingensmith 
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Nick Klingensmith

From: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com>
Sent: Friday, December 29, 2017 12:10 PM
To: Nick Klingensmith; Bill Kloos
Subject: Fwd:
Attachments: ATT00001.htm; 20150302_123422.jpg

Nick, 

I am forwarding 5 or 6 emails with photos of clearance underway at Pacific Gales 

Jim Haley 
219-670-4224 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Troy Russell <troyerussell@gmail.com> 
To: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com> 
Sent: Tue, Mar 3, 2015 8:44 am 

Total Control Panel  Login

To: 
nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com 

From: jmhaley@aol.com 

Remove this sender from my allow list

You received this message because the sender is on your allow list.

Exhibit A



Exhibit A
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Nick Klingensmith

From: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com>
Sent: Friday, December 29, 2017 12:14 PM
To: Nick Klingensmith; Bill Kloos
Subject: Fwd:
Attachments: ATT00001.htm; 20150302_123411.jpg

Dozer grubbing. 

Jim Haley 
219-670-4224 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Troy Russell <troyerussell@gmail.com> 
To: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com> 
Sent: Tue, Mar 3, 2015 8:44 am 

Total Control Panel  Login

To: 
nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com 

From: jmhaley@aol.com 

Remove this sender from my allow list

You received this message because the sender is on your allow list.

Exhibit B



Exhibit B



1

Nick Klingensmith

From: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com>
Sent: Friday, December 29, 2017 12:26 PM
To: Nick Klingensmith; Bill Kloos
Subject: Fwd:
Attachments: ATT00001.htm; 20150302_123416.jpg

Jim Haley 
219-670-4224 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Troy Russell <troyerussell@gmail.com> 
To: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com> 
Sent: Tue, Mar 3, 2015 8:44 am 

Total Control Panel  Login

To: 
nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com 

From: jmhaley@aol.com 

Remove this sender from my allow list

You received this message because the sender is on your allow list.

Exhibit C
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Nick Klingensmith

From: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com>
Sent: Friday, December 29, 2017 12:29 PM
To: Nick Klingensmith; Bill Kloos
Subject: Fwd:
Attachments: ATT00001.htm; 20150302_124828.jpg

Big Dozer and Fuel Truck 

Jim Haley 
219-670-4224 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Troy Russell <troyerussell@gmail.com> 
To: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com> 
Sent: Tue, Mar 3, 2015 8:44 am 

Total Control Panel  Login

To: 
nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com 

From: jmhaley@aol.com 

Remove this sender from my allow list

You received this message because the sender is on your allow list.

Exhibit D



Exhibit D
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Nick Klingensmith

From: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com>
Sent: Friday, December 29, 2017 12:42 PM
To: Nick Klingensmith; Bill Kloos
Subject: Fwd:
Attachments: ATT00001.htm; 20150302_122436.jpg

Nick, 

I have more but this should do the trick, Two excavators and one dozer working 
Jim Haley 
219-670-4224 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Troy Russell <troyerussell@gmail.com> 
To: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com> 
Sent: Tue, Mar 3, 2015 8:41 am 

Total Control Panel  Login

To: 
nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com 

From: jmhaley@aol.com 

Remove this sender from my allow list

You received this message because the sender is on your allow list.

Exhibit E
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Nick Klingensmith

From: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com>
Sent: Friday, December 29, 2017 11:47 AM
To: Nick Klingensmith; Bill Kloos
Subject: Fwd: Pacific Gales east-view photos
Attachments: ATT00001.htm

Here are photos  taken pre clearance. 

Jim Haley 
219-670-4224 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Darin Bunch <darinbunch@mac.com> 
To: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com> 
Sent: Mon, Dec 18, 2017 12:38 am 
Subject: Pacific Gales east-view photos 

Download full resolution images 
Available until Jan 16, 2018 

Hey Jim, let me know if any of these work for what you’re looking for. —D 

Exhibit F
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Total Control Panel  Login

To: 
nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com 

From: jmhaley@aol.com 

Remove this sender from my allow list

You received this message because the sender is on your allow list.

Exhibit F
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Nick Klingensmith

From: Jim Haley <jmhaley@aol.com>
Sent: Friday, December 29, 2017 1:02 PM
To: Nick Klingensmith
Subject: clearence costs
Attachments: ATT00001.htm; clearence cost.pdf

Nick, 

I have included the check register for Highland Golf Services, These were for fuel and additional labor 
for clearance of gorse at the Pacific Gales golf course. I also want to include the typical rental rates 
for our excavators and dozers. 

 2    D-5G's (dozer)             $5,200.00 per month   X 3.5           $36,400.00 

 1    315cl (excavator)           $8,500.00 per month   X 3.5           $22,750.00 

 1    200 Kobelco (excavator)                  $12,000.00 per month X3.5            $42,000.00 

Jim Haley 
219-670-4224 

Total Control Panel  Login

To: 
nickklingensmith@landuseoregon.com 

From: jmhaley@aol.com 

Remove this sender from my allow list

You received this message because the sender is on your allow list.

Exhibit G



Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount Calculated Amount

Check 1049 02/03/2015 Jeff Knapp 1000 · First Nationa... -348.00

Knapp Ranch 1700 · Prepaid Knap... -348.00 348.00

TOTAL -348.00 348.00

Check 1054 02/13/2015 Jeff Knapp 1000 · First Nationa... -615.00

Knapp Ranch 1700 · Prepaid Knap... -615.00 615.00

TOTAL -615.00 615.00

Check 1057 02/24/2015 Jeff Knapp 1000 · First Nationa... -2,562.50

Knapp Ranch 1700 · Prepaid Knap... -2,562.50 2,562.50

TOTAL -2,562.50 2,562.50

Check 1056 03/11/2015 Jeff Knapp 1000 · First Nationa... -6,595.56

Knapp Ranch 1700 · Prepaid Knap... -6,595.56 6,595.56

TOTAL -6,595.56 6,595.56

Check 1058 03/24/2015 Jeff Knapp 1000 · First Nationa... -1,960.00

Knapp Ranch 1700 · Prepaid Knap... -1,960.00 1,960.00

TOTAL -1,960.00 1,960.00

Check 1092 04/04/2015 Jeff Knapp 1000 · First Nationa... -1,403.00

Knapp Ranch 1700 · Prepaid Knap... -1,403.00 1,403.00

TOTAL -1,403.00 1,403.00

Check 1094 04/23/2015 Jeff Knapp 1000 · First Nationa... -1,405.00

Knapp Ranch 1700 · Prepaid Knap... -1,405.00 1,405.00

TOTAL -1,405.00 1,405.00

Check 1098 05/13/2015 Jeff Knapp 1000 · First Nationa... -400.00

2:42 PM Highland Golf Services, Inc.
12/29/17 Check Detail

January 15, 2015 through January 15, 2016

Page 1

Exhibit H



Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount Calculated Amount

Knapp Ranch 1700 · Prepaid Knap... -400.00 400.00

TOTAL -400.00 400.00

Check 1403.00 06/19/2015 Jeff Knapp 1000 · First Nationa... -1,170.00

Knapp Ranch 1700 · Prepaid Knap... -1,170.00 1,170.00

TOTAL -1,170.00 1,170.00

2:42 PM Highland Golf Services, Inc.
12/29/17 Check Detail

January 15, 2015 through January 15, 2016

Page 2

Exhibit H



Exhibit I



Exhibit I



Exhibit I



ATTACHMENT 5a 
APPLICANT’S NOVEMBER 10 AND DECEMBER 20 APPEALS 
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Land Use Application 
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CURRY COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
94235 MOORE STREET, SUITE 113 

GOLD BEACH, OREGON  97444 

Carolyn Johnson       Phone (541) 247-3284 
Planning Director     FAX (541) 247-4579 

File #___________    Fee $ ___________   Receipt # ____________   Accepted by _________ 

LAND USE DECISION APPLICATION FORM 
Application Type (Check One) 

 Comp Plan/Zone Change       Conditional Use      Variance        Partition      Subdivision   

  Other 

Application Date:_____________________ Hearing / Decision Date: ___________________ 

APPLICANT:  Please complete all parts of this form.  The attached application checklist will be marked by staff to reflect the 
information and supporting items required for this request.  Please return this prepared checklist, the completed application 
form and required fee at the time of submission.  Please note that your application cannot be reviewed or processed until all 
the required items have been provided.   

1. PROPERTY OWNER OF RECORD

Name _public right-of-way, owned by Curry County and ODOT, as shown on exhibit.  Private

property owned by Knapp Ranches, Inc._________

Mailing Address: __(for Knapp Ranches) 92373 Knapp Rd    _______________________ 

City, State, ZIP: _Port Orford, OR 97465______________________________________________ 

Telephone #: ________________________________    E-Mail _bknapp@2cj.com____ 

2. AGENT (If Any)

Name: __Nick Klingensmith, Law Office of Bill Kloos, P.C._______

Mailing Address: _375 W. 4th Ave, suite 201,   _

City, State, ZIP: ___ Eugene OR, 97401__________________________________________

Telephone # _541-912-5280_________  E-Mail __nklingensmith@landuseoregon.com________

3. BASIC PROPOSAL (Briefly describe your proposed land use)

___The applicant proposes to develop a pipeline to deliver recycled wastewater, and a reservoir, in

order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf course.  The pipeline will be developed inside public rights of

way, and also on private property.  There are two alternative routes under consideration.  The reservoir

will be developed on private property.  Please see attached narrative that addresses relevant approval

standards.  ___________________________________

4. PROPERTY INFORMATION

Assessor Map #_See attached narrative__    Tax Lot (s) ___________________________

Attachment  7
Application to County



Land Use Application  
Page 2 of 5 

Zoning: ______________________________    Total Acreage _____________________________ 

   

   
 
 
 

5. PROPERTY LOCATION  
Address (if property has a situs address) __________________________________________ 

Description of how to locate the property __The two pipeline routes under consideration are 

depicted in attached exhibits.  They can generally be described as (1) running north along 

Arizona St, and thence west and north across land owned by Knapp Ranches Inc.; and (2) 

running north along Madrona Ave., until travelling west (partially through private property, 

with the landowner’s permission) to land owned by Knapp Ranches, Inc._______________ 

 

6. EXISTING LAND USE (briefly describe the present land use of the property) 

   Vacant    Developed;  Describe existing development _The subject property is a 

mixture of vacant and developed.  The public rights of way are developed with roadbed and 

pavement.  Portions of the private property along both routes have varying degrees of existing 

low-density residential development.  The property known as the Knapp Ranch is vacant, and 

is primarily used for cattle grazing. 

 

7. SURROUNDING LAND USES (Briefly describe the land uses on adjacent property)  

___Land uses adjacent to the proposed pipeline include low-density residential uses, and 

vacant lands, as depicted in the attached exhibits.    

 

8. SERVICE AND FACILITIES AVAILABLE TO THE PROPERTY 
Please indicate what services and facilities are available to the property.  If on-site sewage disposal and/or water 
source is proposed, a copy of the approved site evaluation or septic system permit and a copy of any water rights 
or well construction permit must be submitted with this application. 
 
The proposed development is a pipeline that will carry recycled wastewater.  None of the services and facilities in 

this list are needed for the use, and none of them are germane to relevant approval criteria.    

Water Source ____________________________________________________ 

Sewage Disposal _________________________________________________ 

Electrical Power __________________________________________________ 

Telephone Service ________________________________________________ 

Fire Department/District ___________________________________________ 

School District ___________________________________________________ 

 

9. ROAD INFORMATION 

Nearest Public Road ___See attached narrative_____ 

Private Roads Serving the Property __ See attached narrative ______________________ 



Land Use Application  
Page 3 of 5 

 Road Condition______________________________________________________________ 

 Legal Status ________________________________________________________________ 

 Ownership:   I own the road   Easement on others property   Joint Owner   

 Please submit record of ownership (i.e. deeds, easement, plat dedication, etc) 

Proposed New Roads/Driveways (Briefly describe any new road construction related to this application 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

   

10. PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Topography (Briefly describe the general slope and terrain of the property) 

__The land where the proposed pipeline will be developed is relatively flat, for both routes 

under consideration, with a gentle upward slope as the pipeline advances to the north.   _____ 

 

Vegetation (Briefly describe the vegetation on the property) __For the portion of the pipeline 

that will be developed within public rights of way, there is no vegetation.  For the portion of 

the pipeline that will be developed across the Knapp Ranch, the vegetation is a mix of low 

timber and scrub.    
 

 

11. FINDINGS OF FACT 
Oregon Statute and the zoning ordinance requires that land use decisions be supported by factual 
findings.  The burden of proof is on the proponent therefore it is required that the application provide 
findings to support the request in this application.  The standards and criteria that are relevant to this 
application will be provided by the staff and are considered to be a part of this application form.  
Please read the standards and criteria carefully and provide factual responses and evidence to address 
each standard.  These findings must be sufficiently specific to allow the decision maker to determine 
whether your request meets the relevant standard.  Please attach your written findings and supporting 
evidence to this application.   
FAILURE TO PROVIDE THE REQUIRED FINDINGS WILL PREVENT THE APPLICATION 
FROM BEING PROCESSED AND IT WILL BE RETURNED AS BEING INCOMPLETE. 

 
 

12. APPLICANT’S SIGNATURE AND STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING 
(Please read the statement below before signing the signature blank) 

I (We)_________________________________________________ ; 

 __________________________________________________ ; 

 __________________________________________________ ; 

 __________________________________________________ ;  have filed this application for 

 _____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
With the Curry County Department of Community Development-Planning Division to be reviewed and processed 
according to State of Oregon and county ordinance requirements.  My (our) signature (s) below affirms that I (we) 
have discussed the application with the staff, and that I (we) acknowledge the following disclosures: 
 
(a) I (we are stating all information and documentation submitted with this application is true and 

correct to the best of my (our) knowledge.  
 



Land Use Application  
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(b) I (we) understand that if false information and documentation has been submitted and the decision 
is based on that evidence, the decision may be nullified and the county may seek all legal means to 
have the action reversed.  

 
(c) I (We) understand any representations, conclusions or opinions expressed by the staff in pre-

application review of this request do not constitute final authority or approval, and I (we) am (are) 
not entitled to rely on such expressions in lieu of formal approval of my (our) request.  

 
(d) I (We) understand that I (we) may ask questions and receive input from staff, but acknowledge 

that I (we) am (are) ultimately responsible for all information or documentation submitted with 
this application.  I (We) further understand staff cannot legally bind the county to any fact or 
circumstance which conflicts with State of Oregon or local ordinance, and in event a conflict 
occurs, the statement or agreement is null and void.  

 
(e) I (We) understand that I (we) have the burden of proving that this request meets statutory and 

Ordinance requirements, and I (we) must address all of the criteria that may apply to the decision 
being made.  The criteria for approving or denying this request have been provided to me (us) as a 
part of the application form. 

 
(f) I (We) understand the staff is entitled to request additional information or documentation any time 

after the submission of this application if it is determined as such information is needed for review 
and approval.   

 
(g) I (We) understand this application will be reviewed by the Oregon Department of Land 

Conservation & Development (DLCD) and possibly other state agencies as part of the statewide 
land use coordination process.  I (We) understand that agencies that participate in the review 
process have the legal right to appeal the approval of the request.   

 
(h) I (We) understand that it is my (our) responsibility, and not the county’s, to respond to any appeal 

and to prepare the legal defense of the county’s approval of my (our) request.  I (We) further 
realize it is not the county’s function to argue the case at any appeal hearing.   

 
(i) I (We) understand that I (we) am (are) entitled to have a lawyer or land use consultant represent 

me (us) regarding my application and to appear with me (or for me) at any appointment, 
conference or hearing relating to it.  In light of the complexity and technical nature of most land 
use decisions, I (we) understand that it may be in my best interests to seek professional assistance 
in preparation of this application. 

 
(j) The undersigned are the owner (s) of record for the property described as: 

 
Assessor Map(s) _______________________________________________________ 

and Tax Lot(s) _________________________________________________________ 

in the records of Curry County.  
 

This application MUST BE SIGNED BY ALL PROPERTY OWNERS OF RECORD, or you must submit a 

notarized document signed by each owner of record who has not signed the application form, stating that the owner 

has authorized this application. 

 

(1) Signature _________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name __Nick Klingensmith, attorney for Elk River Property Development, LLC____ 

  

 (2) Signature _________________________________________________________________ 
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(3)        Signature _________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name ________________________________________________________________ 

   

 (4) Signature _________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name ________________________________________________________________ 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

ADDITIONAL NOTES: 

All fees must be paid at the time your application is filed.  Staff will examine the application when filed to check for 

completeness and will not accept it if required items are missing.  A final completeness check will be made prior to 

doing public notice regarding the pending decision.  If it is determined to be incomplete or the findings are 

insufficient you will be notified and you must provide the required information in a timely manner to avoid denial of 

the request.   

 

ORS 215.427 required the county to take final action on a land use application (except for plan/zone changes) 

including all local appeals within 120 days if inside an Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) or 150 days if outside a 

UGB once the application is deemed complete. 

 

PLOT PLANS:  

All applications require that a plot plan of the subject property be included with the application form.  The plot plan 

is an understandable may of your property and its relationship to adjacent properties.  The plot plan must show 

certain essential information that is needed for the staff and the decision makers in the evaluation of your request.  

The plot plan is also incorporated into the public notice sent to adjacent property owners and affected agencies.  The 

plot plan should be prepared on a single sheet of paper (preferable 8 ½ x 11”) so copies can easily be reproduced for 

review.   

 

An example plot plan is attached to this form to give you an idea of what information should be included on your 

plan and how it should be drawn.  The plot plan does not have to be prepared by a surveyor or engineer, and can 

generally be prepared by the applicant from the Assessor map of the property.  The dimensional information 

included on the plot plan must be accurate and drawn to scale so that the plot plan reasonably represents the subject 

property and any development therein.  If your application is for a land partition or subdivision Oregon Statute 

required that plat maps must be prepared by a surveyor licensed by the state. 



ATTACHMENT 8 
November 8 and December 14, 2017 Planning Commission Final orders 

(attachments to the Orders can be viewed at the Community Development Department at 
94235 Moore Street #113 in Gold Beach Oregon) 

























Attachment 9 
 

November 27, 2017 Legal memorandum to the Board 
 

July, 2017, October 11 and October 24 memos to the Planning Commission 
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November 7, 2017 Planning Commission meeting transcript 
 



November 7, 2017

Curry County Planning Commission Meeting

CC REPORTING AND VIDEOCONFERENCING
172 East 8th Ave

Eugene, OR 97401
541-485-0111

www.ccreporting.com



November 7, 2017
 1
  

  
        CURRY COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
  
          TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 7, 2017; 5:30 P.M.
  
                          -o0o-
  
  
  
                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  November the 7th,
  
   2017.  The time is 5:30 p.m.  We're meeting here
  
   in Gold Beach at the County Annex Building.  I'd
  
   like to call this meeting to order.
  
                  Carolyn, could you do roll call,
  
   please?
  
                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Certainly.
  
   Commissioner McHugh.
  
                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  Here.
  
                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner St.
  
   Marie.
  
                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  Here.
  
                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  
   Pagano.
  
                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Here.
  
                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Very good.
  
                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  
   Morrow.
  
                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Present.
  
                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  
   Brazil.

 

ccreporting.com
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1                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Here.
  
2                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  
3   Kennedy.
  
4                  COMMISSIONER KENNEDY:  Here.
  
5                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  
6   Freed -- Freeman.  Sorry.
  
7                  COMMISSIONER FREEMAN:  Here.
  
8   Whatever works.
  
9                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Mix you up with
  

10   my husband.  All present.
  

11                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  All right.  Very
  

12   good.  Thank you.
  

13                  If you wouldn't mind standing and
  

14   facing the flag, we'd like to pledge to the
  

15   allegiance.
  

16            (Pledge of Allegiance recited.)
  

17                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Thank you.  Hopefully
  

18   everyone has a copy of the agenda and --
  

19                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Are you going
  

20   to need this?
  

21                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Basically have two
  

22   items on the agenda this evening as far as agenda
  

23   point items.  Are we willing to accept the agenda?
  

24   Do I hear a motion?
  

25                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  I so move.
 

ccreporting.com
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1                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  Second.
  
2                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Motion has been made
  
3   by Kevin and seconded by Diana to accept the
  
4   agenda as written.
  
5                  Carolyn.
  
6                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Mr. McHugh.
  
7                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  Aye.
  
8                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner St.
  
9   Marie.
  

10                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  Aye.
  

11                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  

12   Pagano.
  

13                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Yes.
  

14                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  

15   Morrow.
  

16                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Aye.
  

17                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  

18   Brazil.
  

19                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Aye.
  

20                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  

21   Kennedy.
  

22                  COMMISSIONER KENNEDY:  Aye.
  

23                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  

24   Freeman.
  

25                  COMMISSIONER FREEMAN:  Yes.
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1                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Thank you.
  
2                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  All right.  Public
  
3   comment for the items not on the agenda.  Do we
  
4   have any comment at this time from the public?
  
5                  Seeing none, we'll move to agenda
  
6   item No. 5.  5-A is dealing with the application
  
7   AD-1705.  The public hearing is closed, but
  
8   Planning Commission deliberations are continued
  
9   from the previous meeting of September 21st and
  

10   October 19th.
  

11                  This is for a request to develop a
  

12   pipeline over multiple properties to deliver
  

13   recycled wastewater and a reservoir in order to
  

14   irrigate a Pacific Gales Golf Course.  The
  

15   pipeline could be located on land owned by
  

16   multiple owners on property located on assessor's
  

17   map, various lot numbers as described in the
  

18   agenda.  The applicant is Elk River Property
  

19   Development, LLC.
  

20                  Again, with the -- with this
  

21   particular item, the goal tonight is to deliberate
  

22   on this.  I would ask is there specifically any
  

23   additional -- anything that you would like to say
  

24   at this time?  Carolyn?
  

25                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  No, sir.  I think
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1   the -- my comments are in the staff report and in
  
2   the record.  I really don't have anything more to
  
3   add.
  
4                  I would like to point out that
  
5   County Counsel did provide (inaudible) that is
  
6   also included in here.
  
7                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Yeah.
  
8                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Oh, one other
  
9   point I'd like to make and correction in the staff
  

10   report on page 2 of 10, and I'd like to thank
  

11   Commissioner McHugh for pointing this out to me.
  

12                  There was a comment that I made that
  

13   if county action isn't completed by March 4, 2018,
  

14   the project would -- this project would be
  

15   considered approved, and I'd like to just read
  

16   from this.
  

17                  There is language in the ORS noting
  

18   that if county action has not been completed in
  

19   150 days, which is what I referenced in this
  

20   paragraph page 2, applicant can petition for a
  

21   writ of mandamus to have the decision made by the
  

22   Circuit Court or the applicant can (inaudible) for
  

23   which they have applied.
  

24                  If the applicant has not petitioned
  

25   for a writ of mandamus, the county retains the
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1   ability to continue proceedings on the application
  
2   for 14 additional days or until the applicant
  
3   files for a writ, whichever occurs first.  And
  
4   that is clearly different than what I stated in
  
5   this paragraph.  So timing is somewhat important.
  
6   (Inaudible) and I'm just clarifying.
  
7                  Thank you, Planning Commissioners.
  
8                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.  Is there --
  
9   any commissioner have any additional questions
  

10   concerning that change?
  

11                  MR. HUTTL:  So what exactly does
  

12   that mean, Carolyn?
  

13                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Well, John could
  

14   jump in anytime, but it sounds to me like what it
  

15   means is that at the end of that March 4th time
  

16   period, there would be -- have to be some
  

17   paperwork filed with the Circuit Court to -- John,
  

18   you could explain this, because I don't quite get
  

19   it, but it sounded really good.
  

20                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  It does.
  

21                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  And there's a
  

22   (inaudible).
  

23                  MR. HUTTL:  Because right now it's
  

24   150 days and it's approved if we're silent.
  

25                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Well, that's what
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1   I'd like John to --
  
2                  MR. HUTTL:  So right.
  
3                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Shannon, can you
  
4   hear?
  
5                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  I can.  Thank
  
6   you.
  
7                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.
  
8                  MR. HUTTL:  Thank you.  So not so
  
9   much sure it's approved, but they have the option
  

10   of taking it away from you and having the Circuit
  

11   Court approve it or they could proceed with the
  

12   Planning Commission in another 14 days.  I don't
  

13   have the actual text of the statute in front of
  

14   me.
  

15                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.
  

16                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  I'm sorry.
  

17   Who's talking?  Is that John?
  

18                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  That's John Huttl.
  

19                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Okay.
  

20                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  County Counsel.
  

21                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  I just need
  

22   you to talk just a little louder at the end of
  

23   your sentences, John, just because you're trailing
  

24   off just a bit.
  

25                  MR. HUTTL:  Very good.
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1                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Thank you.
  
2                  MR. HUTTL:  I'll try to do better.
  
3   But essentially what I said was that at the end of
  
4   150 days, they -- the applicant has an option
  
5   under the law to go to Circuit Court and take --
  
6   take the decision away from you or to proceed with
  
7   you for at least another 14 days.
  
8                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Okay.  I heard
  
9   you.  Thank you.
  

10                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  All right.  So at
  

11   this point here we're open for comment and
  

12   deliberation amongst commissioners.  The -- we
  

13   have in front of us on page 4, a -- a proposed
  

14   resolution that we can be evaluating in our
  

15   discussion.  So does anyone --
  

16                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  John --
  

17                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Kevin, you want to
  

18   start?
  

19                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  Yes.  Before
  

20   we begin, could we settle the issue of whether the
  

21   conditional use permit AD-1411 is dead or not?  In
  

22   the Board of Commissioners hearing on appeal, they
  

23   clearly stated the standard that they're using
  

24   when they said that the conditional use permit
  

25   will expire in one year.  It has nothing to do
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1   with clearing a little gorse.  It has everything
  
2   to do with whether or not all the permits
  
3   necessary to proceed or to operate have been
  
4   obtained or the applicant must file a request for
  
5   an extension.
  
6                  We have Director Johnson's statement
  
7   to us that no requests for any time extension have
  
8   been filed.  So it seems that that's -- the
  
9   conditional use permit has expired.  It's dead.
  

10   But since the applicants put up an argument on
  

11   that, I think we ought to decide that first before
  

12   we do anything else.
  

13                  MR. HUTTL:  Mr. --
  

14                  MR. MCHUGH:  We're in deliberations,
  

15   Mr. Huttl.
  

16                  MR. HUTTL:  I haven't heard a motion
  

17   at all.
  

18                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  Okay.  We're
  

19   in deliberations.  We'll ask you questions.
  

20                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  We --
  

21                  MR. HUTTL:  I'm asking to be
  

22   recognized.
  

23                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  At this time, John --
  

24   so what Kevin is saying is that we want to see how
  

25   we feel as far as the bearing is if the
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1   applicant -- the applicant use permit request is
  
2   active or not.
  
3                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  Correct.
  
4                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  And if that makes a
  
5   difference or not.  So I kind of hear that in a
  
6   two-part question.
  
7                  MR. HUTTL:  There's been no motion,
  
8   no second.
  
9                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  So what we're talking
  

10   about here is asking for open communications on
  

11   that issue.  Right?  So on that, do we have any
  

12   other open comment with that?
  

13                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  I'd like to
  

14   note that in the last staff report it was noted
  

15   that this was in fact dead.
  

16                  MR. HUTTL:  Was what?  Dead?
  

17                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Yeah.  I'll
  

18   give you the exact wording here.
  

19                  MR. HUTTL:  Well, I didn't
  

20   understand.
  

21                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Yeah.  The
  

22   October staff report.
  

23                  MR. HUTTL:  This issue was dead or
  

24   the (inaudible) conditional use was.
  

25                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  No.  The
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1   AD-1410 had expired.  The conditional use permit
  
2   had expired.
  
3                  MR. HUTTL:  I must have missed the
  
4   meeting.  I heard that because they had done some
  
5   work on the Gorse, it was kind of working towards
  
6   that goal.  It was in place.
  
7                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  No.  That was
  
8   the applicant's position.  I believe staff report
  
9   stated that it had expired.
  

10                  MR. HUTTL:  I must have missed that.
  

11                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Yeah.  It was
  

12   in the staff report, I'm pretty sure.  Let me see.
  

13   I can pull it up here.  Do you have -- no.
  

14                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  The Planning
  

15   Commission asked whether a time extension could be
  

16   filed for conditional use permit.  The answer to
  

17   that question is no.  They did not file an
  

18   application, a time extension application.
  

19                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Which was one
  

20   of the conditions initially placed on that.
  

21                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  The condition was
  

22   that the -- the conditional permit was valid for
  

23   one year unless they received an extension, but
  

24   the --
  

25                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Carolyn, can
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1   you repeat that, the condition?
  
2                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  The conditional
  
3   use permit approval is valid for one year unless
  
4   the applicant applies for and receives an
  
5   extension of this approval.  This language is
  
6   grounded in the zoning code that talks about a
  
7   one-year life of the conditional use permit.
  
8                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Thank you.
  
9                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Great.
  

10                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  And how -- what
  

11   inaugurates or initiates the permit.
  

12                  I would like -- could I ask a
  

13   question of County Counsel --
  

14                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  So --
  

15                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  -- on this?
  

16                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  -- I just want to
  

17   make sure everyone's got the question clear and --
  

18   and what -- if there's -- the conditional use
  

19   permit is for a year if there's no action taken.
  

20   The project doesn't have to be completed at the
  

21   end of a year.
  

22                  MR. MCHUGH:  No.
  

23                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  That's not correct.
  

24                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  That's not how
  

25   it reads, Mr. Chair.  If you -- this big
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1   supplemental packet that we got last month,
  
2   somewhere in here they attached the Board of
  
3   Commissioners' findings and the conditions of
  
4   approval.  And it's -- you know, it's like 36 in
  
5   this big packet, but it's numbered page 22 of 27.
  
6   It's their finding No. 6, and here's where this is
  
7   the wording that's in our zoning ordinance too,
  
8   but it's incorporated in its entirety in their
  
9   findings.
  

10                  "Authorization of conditional use
  

11   permit in general shall become null and void after
  

12   one year unless substantial construction has taken
  

13   place or an extension has been granted under
  

14   section 7.050 (4).
  

15                  "Substantial construction in this
  

16   case means obtaining all necessary permits
  

17   required by governmental agencies to commence
  

18   construction of any structures or to commence the
  

19   principal activity permitted by the conditional
  

20   use permit."
  

21                  That's all well and good, but the
  

22   findings in finding No. 1 is, "This conditional
  

23   use permit approval is valid for one year unless
  

24   the applicant applies for and receives an
  

25   extension of this approval."
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1                  That's the binding sentence.  It
  
2   doesn't matter what they argue about any other
  
3   part of whether they cleared Gorse, whether it's a
  
4   two-year -- they claim it as two years, the
  
5   legally binding condition is No. 1, which is it's
  
6   good for a year unless they request an extension.
  
7                  MR. HUTTL:  For the record, I
  
8   disagree with that.  This is County Counsel
  
9   speaking.
  

10                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  John, what -- what
  

11   Kevin's reading is printed so --
  

12                  MR. HUTTL:  He left out some words.
  

13   Do you want me to include the words he left out?
  

14                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  And the printed
  

15   document is what we've all had to review.
  

16                  Just -- just a second.  Okay?  Hang
  

17   on.
  

18                  Based off of -- based off of that
  

19   language, Ted, you had something?  Diane, do you
  

20   have anything to add at this particular point?
  

21                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  I am seeing
  

22   this as a total separate issue.
  

23                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.  Do you have
  

24   anything to add?
  

25                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  (Inaudible) I
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1   agree with (inaudible).
  
2                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.  Counsel, would
  
3   you go ahead and interpret what the wording
  
4   where -- was that you believe was missing?
  
5                  MR. HUTTL:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
  
6   First of all, in speaking to Commissioner Pagano
  
7   and (inaudible) comments, and I'll reiterate my
  
8   earlier point made in prior submittals to the
  
9   board and to the Planning Commission, the -- the
  

10   statute under consideration for the permit
  

11   application that's before you just requires that
  

12   the use being contemplated is permitted in the
  

13   zone, and the use that they propose is permitted
  

14   in the zone.
  

15                  The statute does not specify --
  

16                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  What, John --
  

17                  MR. HUTTL:  -- it needs a valid
  

18   conditional use permit.
  

19                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Wait a minute.  Wait
  

20   a minute, John.  What we're asking right now is
  

21   just comment as to the question:  Is the permit,
  

22   the special use permit that was issued, valid at
  

23   this time or has it expired?
  

24                  MR. HUTTL:  Here's what it says
  

25   under the findings on page 22 of 27.  This is the
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1   part that Commissioner McHugh left out.
  
2                  It says, "The applicant must have
  
3   initiated substantial construction" -- this is
  
4   findings.  This is under -- it says "Findings" in
  
5   all caps in bold.  And it says, "The applicant
  
6   must have initiated substantial construction on
  
7   the approved use within one year of the date of
  
8   this approval unless the property owner applicant
  
9   applies for and receives an extension of this
  

10   approval."
  

11                  Then it says, "Therefore, as a
  

12   condition of approval, the conditional use permit
  

13   is valid for one year unless the applicant applies
  

14   for and receives an extension of approval."
  

15                  That could be interpreted to allow
  

16   for -- that they have a valid permit if they have
  

17   initiated substantial construction on the approved
  

18   use within one year.
  

19                  So it's not as Commissioner McHugh
  

20   argues it's legally binding.  That's his position
  

21   and his interpretation.  You're entitled to
  

22   interpret it that way, but you don't have to.
  

23                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.  The --
  

24                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  John, if I
  

25   might.
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1                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  The -- if we have --
  
2   if we have that in place or not is not really
  
3   what's in front of us here, though.  Right?
  
4   What's in front of us is --
  
5                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  Actually, it
  
6   is --
  
7                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  -- a request for
  
8   action to develop a water supply from point A to
  
9   point B, so to speak.
  

10                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  If we remain
  

11   in that single statute, but we have in here
  

12   references off to water law in Oregon, we have
  

13   references off into the DEQ, and the DEQ requires
  

14   absolute specificity on where the effluent -- and
  

15   how it's going to be used.
  

16                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  In order for DEQ to
  

17   issue a permit.
  

18                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  True.
  

19                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.  So -- and we
  

20   are not DEQ at this point.  Right?
  

21                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  No.
  

22                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.
  

23                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  But it's part
  

24   of our consideration.
  

25                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Yeah.  All right.  I
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1   think the fact that what's going to happen at the
  
2   far end of this thing is somewhat irrelevant to
  
3   what's in front of us right here, right now, which
  
4   is odd, but --
  
5                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  I don't think
  
6   so, Mr. Chair, and let me explain that.  That we
  
7   have here not just an application to allow -- to
  
8   approve the use of -- well, to approve applicant's
  
9   request to use effluent based on there are no
  

10   public comments of alternates.  That's really the
  

11   decision that we have to make.
  

12                  Did we receive any public comment
  

13   suggesting an alternative method of irrigating the
  

14   Knapp Ranch property and did the applicant
  

15   properly respond to it?  And all the other --
  

16                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.
  

17                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  -- well, what
  

18   we've had wrapped into this, John, is we've had
  

19   structural.  We've had pipelines.  We've had
  

20   things that are completely superfluous to the base
  

21   question that the DLCD require that we answer, and
  

22   all of those, then, hinge on whether there's those
  

23   parts, those extra parts are what hinge on whether
  

24   or not we have a conditional use permit valid at
  

25   this point in time.
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1                  If the conditional use permit is not
  
2   valid at this point in time, then the reservoir
  
3   system on the Knapp Ranch property would be part
  
4   of a new conditional use permit application as
  
5   opposed to this.
  
6                  This particular process, this
  
7   application, as it states, can't be reviewed,
  
8   can't be appealed, can't be remanded, can't be
  
9   changed.
  

10                  And so we need to stick to the
  

11   central question that was presented to us and
  

12   determine what to do with these other parts.
  

13   That's where the validity of the conditional use
  

14   permit becomes important.
  

15                  MR. HUTTL:  I'd like to point out --
  

16                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Go ahead.
  

17                  MR. HUTTL:  I'd like to point out
  

18   the agenda that we approved for today.  This
  

19   speaks clearly to in order to irrigate the Pacific
  

20   Gales Golf Course.
  

21                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  And I agree.
  

22                  MR. HUTTL:  And the question of if
  

23   that is in fact expired or not is extremely valid,
  

24   and substantial construction is the core of that
  

25   section that was cited earlier, and it's all
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1   necessary permits.
  
2                  A VOICE:  We just heard the DEQ is
  
3   not included as an all necessary permit, and it's
  
4   over a year past.  Moving some Gorse is not
  
5   substantial.  Permits are lacking.
  
6                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Have we
  
7   asked --
  
8                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  John.
  
9                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  -- Carolyn, have any
  

10   building permits actually been filed for or in
  

11   process?
  

12                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  No.  No.
  

13                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  For this development?
  

14                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  No.
  

15                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.  Ted.
  

16                  COMMISSIONER FREEMAN:  Normally on
  

17   golf courses they do the groundwork and then they
  

18   site the building.  Normally that's the way it
  

19   works.  And I've only been involved with one from
  

20   beginning to end and that's on Salmon Run.
  

21                  Then on this Gorse issue, I have --
  

22   I'm pretty familiar with the area and that's
  

23   pretty inundated with Gorse, which is probably a
  

24   pretty substantial deal for anybody to remove
  

25   that.  And --
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1                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Substantial.
  
2                  COMMISSIONER FREEMAN:  I hadn't seen
  
3   it, though.  Hadn't seen the site.  So I don't
  
4   know for positive or sure if it (inaudible)
  
5   covered a course.  Much of that property up that
  
6   way it's --
  
7                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Yes.  I've
  
8   been up there fishing and it is, as you said,
  
9   substantially covered with Gorse.
  

10                  COMMISSIONER FREEMAN:  Well, that in
  

11   itself, is probably -- in my opinion, is enough
  

12   for me to work on that.  We're going to end up
  

13   doing something.
  

14                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Commissioner St.
  

15   Marie.
  

16                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  In
  

17   rereading the agenda from September 21st, the
  

18   application is a request to develop a pipeline
  

19   over multiple properties to deliver recycled
  

20   wastewater and a reservoir in order to irrigate
  

21   the Pacific Gales Golf Course.
  

22                  Now, it doesn't say that it exists.
  

23   It doesn't say, you know, that's -- the goal is to
  

24   get the water out there for this potential
  

25   development.  That's what we're supposed to be
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1   focused on, not what the status of this potential
  
2   development is, in my opinion.
  
3                  MR. HUTTL:  So are we supposed to
  
4   approve a pipeline out to a space that doesn't
  
5   exist in the hopes that at some point in the
  
6   future it might actually become viable five years
  
7   or 50 years or something?
  
8                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:
  
9   Theoretically, it could --
  

10                  MR. HUTTL:  It could be a 2 and a
  

11   half mile ditch that goes to nowhere.
  

12                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  Let me ask
  

13   it this way.  Theoretically, could the applicant
  

14   have applied to build this pipeline to the Knapp
  

15   Ranch for irrigation, period.
  

16                  MR. HUTTL:  It's a possibility.  But
  

17   they did not do that.
  

18                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  They did
  

19   not do that.
  

20                  MR. HUTTL:  Right.
  

21                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  But you
  

22   don't know if they're irrigating or not irrigating
  

23   or what they're doing.  And, to me, it is -- it's
  

24   kind of the same thing.
  

25                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  But we're -- I
 

ccreporting.com



November 7, 2017
 23
  

  
1   think they're supposed to work off of facts and
  
2   not, you know, speculation (inaudible).  It's what
  
3   do we have in hand right now.  What we have in
  
4   hand is we have the Knapp property.  We have a
  
5   request to run a pipe out to water -- to irrigate
  
6   something that doesn't exist, may never exist.
  
7                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  It's a
  
8   posed [sic] project.
  
9                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  Yes.  But what
  

10   we do by doing that is if the conditional use
  

11   permit is dead, that's the (inaudible) speaking, a
  

12   new application comes in.  We've now bound
  

13   ourselves if that Planning Commission that hears
  

14   that says we don't want effluent used on that
  

15   property.  That could be a condition of approval.
  

16   But if we do this, we limit a decision of a future
  

17   Planning Commission.  I don't think that's what
  

18   our job is supposed to be right now.
  

19                  Nevertheless, the question about
  

20   whether it exists or not has to do with the
  

21   reservoir and the pipeline, because those would
  

22   have to be dealt with in a new conditional use
  

23   permit and stripped out of this.  That doesn't
  

24   alter the fact that someone wants to put effluent
  

25   up there.  We don't care how they get it.  They
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1   could truck it up there.  And the question is can
  
2   they use it on that property.  And these other
  
3   things are superfluous to that.  So in answering
  
4   that question -- sorry, Shannon.
  
5                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Shannon, can you hear
  
6   us?
  
7                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Yeah.  Yeah, I
  
8   can.  And I don't know how -- Commissioners, I
  
9   have a comment or a question.  I don't want to
  

10   interrupt people.  Should I just kind of say
  

11   "comment," or just say, "question," and then when
  

12   you're ready, you can call on me?  Would that
  

13   work?
  

14                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  That would work.
  

15                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Okay.  Thank
  

16   you.
  

17                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  All right.
  

18                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  (Inaudible) do
  

19   you have anything now?
  

20                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Go ahead, Shannon.
  

21                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Okay.  Be
  

22   patient with me, because the way I see this issue,
  

23   we're going to get to where you're going, Kevin,
  

24   but I need to make a couple detours first.
  

25                  So for me, this is how I see -- I
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1   see the issue, and if -- I want to just get it out
  
2   there for discussions and communications.
  
3                  So when I -- when I'm looking at
  
4   this, what I see is that the argument is that
  
5   under 215.283 1(V) the use is an outright use.
  
6   That's what's being argued.  But when I read that
  
7   section, it's not clear to me that it is an
  
8   outright permitted use because the section reads
  
9   that it requires the irrigation to be for a
  

10   different use under the section.
  

11                  If you're going to rely, therefore,
  

12   on subsection V, it seems you need to hook it on
  

13   another subsection, and none of the other
  

14   subsections, in my reading of this, would allow a
  

15   golf course, nor (inaudible).
  

16                  So what I'm -- what I'm wondering is
  

17   if the conditional use permit is the hook that
  

18   they're arguing is the other permitted use under
  

19   the section, and if that is the argument, then I
  

20   very much think it's relevant, because the only
  

21   way, in my understanding of this, if this is an
  

22   outright use to do the irrigation is if there's
  

23   already a use that the irrigation is for that's
  

24   been permitted under that section, and there is
  

25   none, in my understanding, unless a conditional
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1   permit was given previously to what's proposed to
  
2   being built.  And if that's the permit that's
  
3   potentially expired, I do think it's relevant.
  
4                  So at this time, that's my comment
  
5   and my questions regarding what I think is
  
6   relevant or not.
  
7                  So I guess -- so I guess it's a
  
8   question.  So it's a conditional use permit, the
  
9   hook that is being used for this section V to, you
  

10   know, make the argument that the irrigation that
  

11   the golf course uses is an outright use under
  

12   section V.
  

13                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.  Was everybody
  

14   able to hear Shannon okay?
  

15                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  I'm not
  

16   sure I was understanding everything that she was
  

17   saying, though.
  

18                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  215.283 (D).  Is that
  

19   correct, Shannon?
  

20                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  V as in
  

21   Velcro.
  

22                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  V.
  

23                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  And I can -- V
  

24   as in Velcro.  Yeah.  And I can -- we can go back
  

25   and read that.  As I'm reading Mr. Huttl's
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1   memorandum about what was being argued -- and I
  
2   think what's being argued is that we don't need to
  
3   worry about Kevin's concern about the conditional
  
4   use permit because it's an outright use already.
  
5   We don't need to worry about it.
  
6                  But as I read the statute, I read it
  
7   differently.  If we go to that statute -- and, of
  
8   course, I just lost it (inaudible).
  
9                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  I have it here
  

10   if you want me to read it, Shannon.
  

11                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Could you,
  

12   please?  And could you -- could you read where it
  

13   says --
  

14                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  If we don't have an
  

15   active permit, then it's not an outright use.
  

16                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  And that's
  

17   what I'm thinking.  Because as you read that
  

18   section V, it says "irrigate" -- at the end, it
  

19   says, "Irrigation used -- used to" -- you know,
  

20   irrigate something that's already been permitted
  

21   somewhere in that ordinance to the 215.283, so it
  

22   has to be for something that's already been
  

23   approved.
  

24                  And if it's a golf course, if that
  

25   irrigation system is for the golf course, then the
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1   golf course needs to be approved under the
  
2   section.  And if it doesn't have a valid permit,
  
3   then I do -- I don't think that that's -- that
  
4   that's an outright use anymore.
  
5                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.
  
6                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  A couple other
  
7   things really quick since I've got the mic here,
  
8   and I don't want to interrupt anyone.  Looking at
  
9   the beginning of that section V as in Velcro, it
  

10   says, "An approved use under this section is
  

11   subject to 215.246," and that is the provision
  

12   that Mr. Huttl was referring to in his memorandum
  

13   that requires DEQ to do analysis on the use of the
  

14   reclaimed water.
  

15                  But -- so what that says is the
  

16   approved use under V is subject to that 215.246,
  

17   which means that DEQ has those already -- in my
  

18   reading of it, already has to have made its
  

19   determination in order for the use to be approved
  

20   as -- as a use under other subsection -- under
  

21   subsection D.
  

22                  And then also when I go to 215.246,
  

23   it says 215.246, which is the DEQ, you know,
  

24   basically it looks into to make sure that the
  

25   construction isn't going to have any detrimental
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1   use on the (inaudible) farmland.  It says --
  
2                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Shannon, what
  
3   section of 215.246 again, please?
  
4                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  The 215.246.
  
5   I'm actually not sure off the top -- it's the one
  
6   that -- I think it's right in the beginning.
  
7                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  A(1)(a)?
  
8                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Yeah.  Does
  
9   that -- is that the one that we --
  

10                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  That
  

11   Department of Environmental Quality, in
  

12   conjunction with department's review of license,
  

13   permit, or approval.  Yeah.
  

14                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Can you read
  

15   the whole thing?
  

16                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Yeah.  This is
  

17   1(a), "Require a determination by the Department
  

18   of Environmental Quality, in conjunction with the
  

19   department's review of a license, permit, or
  

20   approval, that the application rates and site
  

21   management practices for the land application of
  

22   reclaimed water, agriculture or industrial process
  

23   water, or biosolids ensure continued agricultural,
  

24   horticultural, or silvicultural production and do
  

25   not reduce the productivity of the tract."
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1                  So it's like a beneficial use
  
2   situation there.
  
3                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Yeah.  So when
  
4   you go back to 215.283, it says that in order to
  
5   find a use permitted, so an outright use, for to
  
6   say that, you know, that conditional use permit,
  
7   if that's going to be permitted, they're required
  
8   for this analysis by OEQ [sic] has been performed
  
9   is my reading of the statute.
  

10                  And since -- I think what John was
  

11   with saying in his -- Mr. Huttl was saying in his
  

12   memorandum is that we don't have to wait until OEQ
  

13   makes that determination because you could
  

14   possibly read the statute that it requires public
  

15   comment or like they have to (inaudible) put a
  

16   (inaudible) in the tract.  But I don't think
  

17   that's the only way you can review it.
  

18                  It's you look -- you can read it.
  

19   If you look to the section 215.283(V), it
  

20   specifically says OEQ is subject -- that the
  

21   outright use is subject to the OEQ analysis.
  

22                  So I think the only way that you can
  

23   read it is that that environmental analysis has to
  

24   be done before the use is accepted, and in just
  

25   thinking about this common sense, that makes sense
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1   to me.  Because why would we approve this use and
  
2   then later on OEQ says, Well, it's going to have
  
3   all this detrimental harm.  I mean, that just
  
4   doesn't make any sense.  So --
  
5                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.
  
6                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  It makes
  
7   sense -- more common sense to me that we would
  
8   hear from OEQ that there's not going to be any
  
9   environmental impact before we pass -- you know,
  

10   pass on the (inaudible).
  

11                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  It sounds like
  

12   cart before the horse.
  

13                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Right.  Right.
  

14                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Yeah.  And
  

15   that could be --
  

16                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  I know there's
  

17   a lot, but (inaudible) that's all I --
  

18                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  It is.  And that's
  

19   for -- I think we can kind of decide on that
  

20   either way.  Shannon, very good.
  

21                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Thank you.
  

22                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  And if you
  

23   lose something and you can't hear somebody
  

24   speaking, go ahead and speak up also, please.
  

25   You're --
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1                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Okay.
  
2                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  -- on a modest
  
3   phone.
  
4                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Do you have anything?
  
5                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  No.
  
6                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  No.  All right.  Do
  
7   I -- do I hear a motion for the resolution for
  
8   AD-1705 as it appears on page 4?
  
9                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  I am going to
  

10   make a motion that we deny AD-1705 based on the
  

11   absence of a valid conditional use permit, and
  

12   then all the reasons that Shannon explained but I
  

13   didn't write down.
  

14                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  I'll email
  

15   them to Carolyn.
  

16                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  We -- okay.  We used
  

17   this one here (inaudible).
  

18                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  (Inaudible.)
  

19                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Hmm?
  

20                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  (Inaudible.)
  

21                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Yeah.  This as
  

22   written on page 4 is to include this.
  

23                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  (Inaudible.)
  

24   Substitute that word.
  

25                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  And so we can
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1   substitute that word for (inaudible) basically.
  
2                  All right.  Do I hear a second on
  
3   the motion that's on the floor?
  
4                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  I second that.
  
5                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.  I have a
  
6   motion on the floor to deny AD-1705, and it will
  
7   be that Curry County Planning Commission hereby
  
8   denies the Elk River Property Development, LLC,
  
9   application, AD-1705, to develop a pipeline for
  

10   recycled water in order to irrigate the Pacific
  

11   Gales Golf Course with the description of the
  

12   properties.
  

13                  Carolyn, could you call for a vote,
  

14   please?
  

15                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  

16   McHugh.
  

17                  COMMISSIONER MCHUGH:  Aye.
  

18                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  

19   Pagano.
  

20                  COMMISSIONER PAGANO:  Aye.
  

21                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner St.
  

22   Marie.
  

23                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  No.
  

24                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  

25   Morrow.
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1                  COMMISSIONER MORROW:  Aye.
  
2                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  
3   Brazil.
  
4                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Aye.
  
5                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  
6   Kennedy.
  
7                  COMMISSIONER KENNEDY:  No.
  
8                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Commissioner
  
9   Freeman.
  

10                  COMMISSIONER FREEMAN:  No.
  

11                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Motion carries.
  

12                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  The motion is
  

13   carried.  On AD-1705, as presented and written,
  

14   has therefore been denied.
  

15                  Okay.  Second on our agenda item 5B,
  

16   application AD-1708, Planning Commission
  

17   authorization of a similar use for parks and/or
  

18   recreational facilities and/or use on county-owned
  

19   properties that are not zoned public facility.
  

20   The applicant is Curry County.  If we could have
  

21   Carolyn go ahead and give us a staff report on
  

22   that, please.
  

23                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Sure.
  

24               (Other matters discussed.)
  

25                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  No motions.  This
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1   next few months is going to be very busy, and I'm
  
2   anticipating that we would all be okay with
  
3   canceling your December meeting.  We don't have
  
4   any pending applications that I need to bring to
  
5   you, and January and February, looking through,
  
6   are very robust citizen involvement committee work
  
7   effort to get the word out on the wild -- wildfire
  
8   hazards section that you looked at last year, as
  
9   well as all the resource zones.  There's four of
  

10   them that I need to take to the board of
  

11   commissioners.
  

12                  So I'm anticipating that that will
  

13   be a very busy time, and unless an application
  

14   comes in that we must review in front of Planning
  

15   Commission, I wouldn't anticipate that we'd meet
  

16   in January or February.
  

17                  So that's kind of a long time to not
  

18   connect but -- in person, but I would certainly
  

19   keep you in the loop if something came up that we
  

20   did need to meet.  I'd probably put out a Doodle
  

21   Pad asking for times that you would be available.
  

22                  But as of right now on the horizon,
  

23   there's just a lot of things going that are really
  

24   going to kind of (inaudible) ongoing committees.
  

25   It's a lot of cleanup that you did last year that
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1   I'm now going to have to take on to the
  
2   (inaudible).
  
3                  For the first part of next year
  
4   after you come back again, I'm going to be
  
5   bringing to you four residential zoning districts,
  
6   and two or three, maybe four commercial districts
  
7   where we're looking to add new land uses.
  
8                  If you remember back last year, you
  
9   adopted a whole new conditional use permit section
  

10   in the zoning union that I didn't (inaudible) than
  

11   what are allowed now, and it looks really good in
  

12   the code, but only 50 percent of the work is done
  

13   because the areas that you've said (inaudible) to
  

14   happen, we have to change those zoning pieces yet
  

15   to enable conditional use permits (inaudible).
  

16                  So that's where we're at.  And next
  

17   up is going to be the residential (inaudible)
  

18   zoning.
  

19                  Beyond that, we recently submitted a
  

20   grant application to DLCD for an update on the
  

21   comprehensive plan recreation element and to
  

22   implement that (inaudible) master plan that went
  

23   in a little at last month.  So if that is awarded,
  

24   we can maybe do some double duty with -- with
  

25   that.  But (inaudible) piece of --
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1                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  But that wouldn't be
  
2   until second quarter at least or --
  
3                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  Probably not.  By
  
4   the time we get the funding and sign the
  
5   paperwork -- you know, fingers crossed that it
  
6   comes through.  If the grant award does not --
  
7   doesn't happen, I still want to see if we can
  
8   figure out a way to pursue it (inaudible), but
  
9   probably wouldn't for my -- from where I'm
  

10   sitting, probably wouldn't be until next year.
  

11                  Next budget year I'd go to the board
  

12   at the budget time and say, Can we throw some
  

13   money at -- yeah.  And that's something I would
  

14   definitely want to consult with you.  But, anyway,
  

15   that's looking ahead, 2018.
  

16                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Okay.  Very good.  My
  

17   last comment is that the Citizens Involvement
  

18   Committee will be holding some meetings, and if
  

19   you happen to be in the area and you want to go
  

20   and listen, it might be a good idea, but --
  

21                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  When are
  

22   they held?
  

23                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  They will be
  

24   announced.
  

25                  COMMISSIONER ST. MARIE:  Okay.
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1   (Inaudible) noticed.
  
2                  DIRECTOR JOHNSON:  End of February,
  
3   early March.
  
4                  CHAIR BRAZIL:  Yeah.  February and
  
5   March.  And they're planning on doing that one in
  
6   the north, one in central, one in the south type
  
7   of thing.  So if you need an excuse to get out of
  
8   the house and to go join the pleasant evening, it
  
9   might be enjoyable.
  

10                  That will conclude the Curry County
  

11   Planning Commission for this date, and the time
  

12   is -- looks like about 7:19 p.m.
  

13                  (Meeting adjourned.)
  

14  
  

15  
  

16  
  

17  
  

18  
  

19  
  

20  
  

21  
  

22  
  

23  
  

24  
  

25  
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1  
  
2                  C E R T I F I C A T E
  
3  
  
4  
  
5   STATE OF OREGON       )
                         )
6   County of Lane        )
  
7  
  
8                I, JAN R. DUIVEN, Certified Shorthand
  
9   Reporter for the State of Oregon, in and for the
  

10   County of Lane, do hereby certify that the
  

11   foregoing pages 1 to 38, comprise a complete,
  

12   true, and correct transcript, transcribed from
  

13   audio CD to the best of my ability, of the
  

14   proceedings held in the above-entitled matter on
  

15   TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 7, 2017.
  

16  
  

17         Dated at Eugene, Oregon, this 21st day of
  

18   November, 2017.
  

19  
  

20  
  

21 

                 
22                JAN R. DUIVEN, CSR, FCRR, CRC

  
23                Certified Shorthand Reporter

  
24  

  
25  
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ATTACHMENT 10 
 
October 18, 2017 Transmittal from the Oregon Coastal Alliance (ORCA)   
September 5 and December 14, 2017 letter from Beverly Walters 
December 20, 2017 letter from Jim Auborn  
December 14, 2017 letter from the Karen Jennings representing the Port Orford Main Street 
Revitalization Program  
December 14, 2017 letter from Karen Auborn  

 



























































































































ATTACHMENT 11 
Planning Commission action/background 

 
A public hearing on Application AD-1705 was held before the Planning Commission on 
September 21 and October 19, 2017. The hearings were conducted according to the 
rules of procedure and conduct of hearings on land use matters as set forth in Section 
2.140(2) of the Curry County Zoning Ordinance. The Planning Commission received 
oral and written evidence concerning this application.  After receiving public testimony 
on September 21, 2017, the Planning Commission continued the public hearing to 
October 19, 2017. After receiving public testimony at the October 19 public hearing, the 
public hearing was closed and the Planning Commission continued its deliberations to 
November 7.  
 
On November 7 the Planning Commission deliberated on the application based on 
evidence submitted into the record.  Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the 
Planning Commission voted to deny application AD -1705 on a 4-3 vote (Attachment 9a, 
see line 33 - line 13 to page 34 line 11) On November 8 Planning Commission Chair 
John Brazil signed the Final Order (Attachment 8) denying the application. The 
applicant appealed the November 8, 2017 Final Order.  
 
Following November 8 Planning Commission meeting, Commissioners Brazil, McHugh 
and Morrow questioned the validity of the November 8 Final Order as, in their opinions, 
the procedure by which the Final Order was issued was flawed and did not comply with 
the procedures for issuance of Final Orders outlined in Zoning Ordinance section 
2.140(2(m)&(n). A November 27, 2017 (Attachment 9) County Counsel memo (pages 5 
& 6) expands further on the validity of the November 8 Final Order.   The underlined 
sections of the citations below were the subject of the Commissioners concerns. 
Section 2.140(2)(m)&(n) state:   
 
(m) Conclusion and findings.   
At the conclusion of the hearing, the decision making body shall make its decision with 
a motion, duly seconded which shall pass with a majority vote of the members present 
to constitute a quorum of the decision making body.  The decision making body may 
state findings which may incorporate findings proposed by any party, or the Director, or 
may take the matter under advisement.  The decision making body may request 
proposed findings and conclusions from any party to the hearing.  The decision making 
body, before finally adopting findings and conclusions may circulate the same in 
proposed form to the parties for written comment.  All actions taken by the decision 
making body pursuant to adopting findings and conclusions shall be made a part of the 
record. The decision making body shall announce the time, date and place that it will 
adopt its final written order regarding the matter being heard at the conclusion of the 
hearing.   
 
(n) Decision.  
The decision, findings and conclusions which support the decision shall not be final until 
reduced to writing and approved by a vote of the majority of the members present to 



constitute a quorum of the decision making body.  The written decision shall be signed 
by the Chair of the commission or majority of the Board whichever is applicable.  The 
Director shall send a copy of the final decision notice of the commission or Board to all 
parties with standing in the matter who have provided a proper mailing an address and 
have indicated that they want a copy of the notice and shall, at the same time, file a 
copy of the final written order in the records of the County.  A copy of the final written 
order shall be provided to the applicant and appellant who have paid an application or 
appeal fee.  Others who request a copy of the order shall pay a copy fee for the 
document.   
 
The Planning Commission held a meeting on December 14, 2017 and reviewed a 
second Final Order prepared by Commissioner Morrow. The second Final Order was 
adopted by the Planning Commission 7-0. An appeal to the second Planning 
Commission Final Order (Attachment 5a) from the applicant’s representative Bill Kloos 
was received on December 20, 2017. The Planning Commission’s November 7 and 
December 14th Final Orders can be found in Attachment 8. 1    
 

                                                 
1 The attachments to the Final Order are on file at the Community Development Department in the AD-1750 project file and  are a 
part of the public record for this proposal. 
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